REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER
CITY OF PICAYUNE

Be It Remembered that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Picayune, Pearl
River County, Mississippi, met at City Hall, 203 Goodyear Blvd., in said City, Tuesday,
February 16, 2016, at 5:00 p.m. in regular session with the following officials present:
Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Tammy Valente, Lynn Bumpers, Jan Stevens, Larry
Breland and Wayne Gouguet, City Manager Jim Luke and City Clerk Amber Hinton.

It Being Determined a quorum was present, the following proceedings were held.
Opening prayer was given by Rev. Jimmy Richardson, followed by the Pledge of

Allegiance led by Father Filkins.

ORDER TO APPROVE MINUTES

Motion was made by Council Member Bumpers, seconded by Council Member
Valente to approve the Minutes for the City of Picayune dated February 2, 2016.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY PRIVILEGE LICENSE REPORT

Motion was made by Council Member Bumpers, seconded by Council Member
Valente to acknowledge receipt of monthly Privilege License report for the month of
January 2016.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens

Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST REPORT
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Motion was made by Council Member Bumpers, seconded by Council Member
Valente to acknowledge receipt of monthly Public Records Request report for the month
of January 2016.

CITY OF PICAYUNE
REPORT OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS
JANUARY 2016
DATE
FILLED/
DATE | PERSON REQUESTING SUBJECT MATTER DENIED | ACTION

01/29/16 | PICAYUNE HOUSING BACKGROUND CHECKS & 01/29/16 | APPROVED

AUTHORITY FINGERPRINTS
01/28/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-0180 | 01/29/16 | APPROVED
01/28/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-0815 | 01/28/16 | APPROVED
01/28/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1057 01/28/16 APPROVED
01/28/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-0871 01/28/16 APPROVED
01/28/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-0916 01/28/16 APPROVED
01/28/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1014 | 01/28/16 | APPROVED
01/28/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1062 01/28/16 APPROVED
01/28/16 | LOUIS CADARD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1442 01/28/16 APPROVED
01/26/16 | DESMOND R MCDOUGLE RECORDS CHECK 01/26/16 APPROVED
01/26/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1338 01/26/16 APPROVED
01/26/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1339 01/26/16 APPROVED
01/27/16 | STACEY A RAYBURN RECORDS CHECK 01/27/16 APPROVED
01/27/16 | KAREN STOCKSTILL ACCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1673 01/27/16 APPROVED
01/26/16 | BRITTANY ACKER RECORD'S CHECK 01/26/16 APPROVED
01/25/16 | N.K. FOOD GROUP GRAND LARCENY REPORT # 2015- 01/25/16 APPROVED
01/21/16 | LEXIS NEXIS iz(:é?lg:éNT REPORT # 2015-08-1261 01/21/16 APPROVED
01/21/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-0729 01/21/16 APPROVED
01/21/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-0515 01/21/16 APPROVED
01/21/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-0988 01/21/16 APPROVED
01/21/16 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT #2015-11-0878 01/21/16 APPROVED
01/21/16 EILEJ)IZEANUEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1643 01/21/16 APPROVED
01/20/16 | JENNIFER MOORE RECORD'S CHECK 01/20/16 APPROVED
01/20/16 | BARRY SCHMALZ ACCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-1014 01/20/16 APPROVED
01/14/16 | FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT # 2016-01-0602 01/14/16 APPROVED
01/14/16 | SUSAN MADERE RECORDS CHECK 01/14/16 APPROVED
01/12/16 | METROPOLITAN REPORTING | ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1639 01/12/16 APPROVED
01/12/16 EX\F:EG_L: ARGUELLES ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1643 01/12/16 APPROVED
01/12/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-11-1331 01/12/16 APPROVED
01/13/16 | RANDY ARNOLD ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1643 01/13/16 APPROVED
01/11/16 | DANNIELLE DEBRULER RECORD'S CHECK 01/11/16 APPROVED
01/08/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2051-12-1513 01/08/16 APPROVED
01/08/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1513 01/08/16 APPROVED
01/08/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1587 01/08/16 APPROVED
01/08/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1634 01/08/16 APPROVED
01/08/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1080 01/08/16 APPROVED

FBI NICS RECORDS CHECK 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/07/16
01/07/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1843 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/07/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1030 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/07/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1552 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/07/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1590 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/07/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1513 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/07/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1848 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/06/16 | BERNADINE SZURLEY RECORDS CHECK 01/06/16 APPROVED
01/07/16 | KEYPOINT GOVERNMENT RECORDS CHECK 01/07/16 APPROVED

SOLUTIONS
01/07/16 | SAFEWAY INSURANCE ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-2056 01/07/16 APPROVED
01/06/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-1180 01/06/16 APPROVED
01/06/16 | LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT # 2015-11-1976 01/06/16 APPROVED
01/06/16 | LEXIS NEXIS INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-0965 01/06/16 APPROVED
01/06/16 | LAKESHORE CHRYSLER INCIDENT REPORT # 2015-12-0965 | 01/06/16 | APPROVED
01/05/16 | REJINA HUDERSON RECORD'S CHECK 01/05/16 | APPROVED
01/05/16 | CHRISTIAN MITCHELL RECORD'S CHECK 01/05/16 APPROVED
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT DONATION FROM PICAYUNE LION’S CLUB

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to accept donation from Picayune Lion’s Club of 48 embroidered American
flags with poles, mounts, and eagle finials valued at $720.00.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE OUT OT STATE TRAVEL FOR JESSICA STOCKSTILL AND
LORRAINE WESTBROOK

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to authorize out of state travel for Jessica Stockstill and Lorraine Westbrook to
attend a skill path seminar in New Orleans on March 17, 2016.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ACCEPT FY 2015 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to accept the FY 2015 audited financial statements.
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CIry oF FICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
AUDTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMEER 30, 2015
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HoLt & ASSOCIATES, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

W. David Dill, CPA H. 1 Holt, CPA
Julic M. Uher, CPA Founder (1215-19907)
Rari M. Blackledge, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council City Managesr and City Clerk
City of Picayune, Mississippl

Report on the Financial Statements

We have sudited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activitics,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Picayune, Mississippi as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes (o the financial statements. which collectively comprise the
City of Picayune, Mississippi's basic financial statements as listed in the Lable of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the peeparation and fair presentation of these financiol stalements in accordance with
acoounting principles generally accepted in the United Sttes of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of intemal control relevint o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to exp pinions on these financial satements based on our audit. We conducted our audit

in secordance with auditing standards generally pecepted in the United States of America and the standords
applicable to financial awdits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards. isseed by the Comptrolier General of the
United States, ‘Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the linancial statements are free of material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidenoe about the and disclosures in the financial
statements. The proceduns selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the linancial statements. whether duc to froud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order (o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstonces, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express na such opinion.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by munagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the finencial
statements.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

2815 HIGHWAY 15 NORTI | LAURIL, MISSISSIPPL 5944 1
PHONE 601-649-3000 | FAX 601-649.30060
WWW HOLTACCOUNTING COM

Summary of Opinions
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Opinion Unit Type of Opinion
Governmental Activities Qualificd
Husiness-lype Activities Qualified
General Fund Unmodificd
Airport Fund Unmaodified
Economic Development Fund Unmodified
Deht Service Fund Unmodificd
Agregate Remuaining Fund Information Unmodificd
Enterprise Funds Qualified

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities

Management has not adopted a methodology for the measurement of net pension fiability in the Governmental
Activities and, sccordingly, has not considered the need 1o pmvidc changes in net pension liahility. Accounting

principles generally sccepted in the United States of America require o measurement of net pension lability, which
would increase the labilities and pensi d net position, and increase/decrense deferred outflows
and inflows of resources, The umounl by which this departure would affeet the liabilitics, net position, and change in
et position has not been determined.,

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the cffects of the mutler described in the “Basis for Qualified Opirion on Governmental
Activitics" paragraph, the financial statements referred (o above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Governmental Activities of the City of Picayune, MS a5 of September 30, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position thercot for the yeor then ended in accordance with sccounting principles pencrally
accepted in the United States of America,

Unmodified Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 10 above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
finuncial position of the general fund and the sggregate remaining fund information of the City of Picayune, MS as
of September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generolly accepted in the United States of America,

Other Mutters

Required Supplementary Informarlon

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis and budgelary comparison information, on poges 714, and 57-60 respectively, be presented 1o
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial ststements, is
required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it (o be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriote operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the reguired supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally acoepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of munagement about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the Information for consistency with management’s responses
1o our inguiries, the basic financial stalements, and otler knowledge we obtained during our awdit of the basic
financial statements, We do not express an opinion of provide any assurance on the information because the Timited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 1o express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Orher Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Picayune, Mississippi’s financial statements, The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards, as reguired by the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, ard Non-Profit Organizations (Circular A-133) is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financinl statements,
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The sccompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by the Office of Management and
Budget Chreutar A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations (Circular A-133) is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underdying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic finoncial statements and certain additional procodures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underfying accounting and other records wsed to prepare
the financial statements or 1o the financial statements themselves, and other additienal procedares in secordance
with auditing standards penerally accepted In the United States of America, In our opinion, the information is faily
stated in all material respects in relation o the basic financial statements as o whole,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also sssued our report dated February 1, 2016 on our
consideration of the City of Picayune, Mississippi's intemal control over financial repoeting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contricts and grant agreements and other matters,  The
purpose of that report is t deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an sudit performed in accardance with Gevermmen Auditing Standards
In considering City of Picayune, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Folt & AHssociates, PLLC

February 1, 2016
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CiTy OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

The following discussion and analysis of City of Picayune, Mississippi's financial performance provides an
overview of the City's financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2015. The intent of this
discussion and analysis is 1o look at the City's performance as a whole. Readers are encouraged to
review the financial statements and the notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding
of the City's financial performance.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

= Total net position for 2015 increased $1,497,825 including a pror perod adjustment of $877
which represents a 3% increase from fiscal year 2014, Total net position for 2014 increased
$1,950,009, which represents a 5% Increase from fiscal year 2013,

s General revenues amounted to $10,124,662 and $11,442,728, or 59% and 66% of all revenues
for fiscal years 2015 and 2014, respectively. Program specific revenues in the form of charges
for services and grants and contributions accounted for $7,025,051, or 41% of total revenues for
2015, and $5,972,282, or 34% of total revenues for 2014,

= The City had $15,652,765 and $15489,687 in expenses for fiscal years 2015 and 2014, only
$7,025.051 for 2015 and $6,972 262 for 2014 of these expenses was offset by program specific
charges for services, grants and contributions. General revenues of $10,124,662 for 2015 and
general revenues of $11,442,728 for 2014 were adequate to provide for these programs.

« Among major funds, the General Fund had $8,940,818 in revenues and $7,880.320 in
expenditures for 2015, and $8,340,048 in revenues and 38,453,523 in expenditures In 2014, The
General Fund's fund balance increased by $534,102 including a prior period adjustment of
($46,251) from 2014 to 2015, and decreased by $1,219,784 from 2012 to 2014,

« Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, Increased by $51.367 for 2015 and increased by
$175.971 for 2014, The increase for 2015 was due to the capital projects.

»  Long-term debt decreased by $1,488 286 for 2015 and decreased by $4,252.756 for 2014, This
decrease for 2015 was due primarily to principal payments on outstanding long-term debt. The
liabilty for compensated absences increased by $68,258 for 2015 and increased by $39,833 for
2014,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements, which
include government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains required supplementary information, supplementary infermation,
and other information.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the City's finances, These statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities, which are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the acerual
basis of accounting. The cument year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardiess of
when cash ig received or paid,

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's nonfiduciary assets and liabilities,
with the differences between the two reported as “net position.” Over ime, increases or decreases in the
City's net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether its financial position is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year ANl changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving

8
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPP1
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Picayune that are
principally supported by taxes and Intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Picayune nclude general
government, public safety, public works, human & cultural services, employee benefils and Interest on
long term dedt  The business-type activities of the City of Picayune include water/sewer and cemetery

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A and B of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into twe
categories. governmental funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds — Mosi of the City’s general actities are reported in ds governmental
funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental
funds are accounted for using the modsfied accrual basis of accounting and the flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. The approach fecuses on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at year end. The
governmental fund statements provide a detsiled view of the Cidy's near-term financing
requirements

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govemment-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmenta! funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-vide financial statements.
By doing so, the reader may gain a better understanding of the long-term impact of the City's
near-term financing decisions. The governmental funds Balance Sheet is reconciled o the
Statement of Net Position, and the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances is reconciled fo the Statement of Activities to faciltate this
comparison between governmental funds and gevernmental activities.

The City maintains individual governmental funds in accordance with the Municipal Audit and
Accounting Guide issued by the Cffice of the State Auditer. Information is presented separately
in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major funds. All non-major funds are
combined and presented in these reports as other governmental funds.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits C and D of this
report.

Proprietary funds - Proprietary funds are enterpse funds, Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the govemment-wide financial
statement. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the water and sewer service.

Fund financial statements for the proprietary funds provide the same type of infermation as the
government-wide financial statements, only In more detail. The Water and Sewer Fund is
considered to be a major fund of the City

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits E, F, and G of this report.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2015

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The financial statements include two schedules that reconcile the amounts reporied on the governmental
funds financlal statements (modified accrual basis of accounting) with government-wide financial
statements (accrual basis of accounting). The following summarizes the major differences between the
two statements:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported on governmental funds financial
statements.

Capital outiay spending results in capilal assets on government-wide financial statements, but is
reported as expenditures on the governmenial funds financlal statements.

Bond and note proceeds result in liabilties on government-wide financial statements, but are
recorded as othér financing sources on the governmental funds financial statements,

Certain other outflows represent elther Increases or decreases in habilites on the government-
wide financial statements, but are reported as expenditures on the govemmental funds financial
statements.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to 2 full understanding of the data pravided in
the govemment-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the financial statements can be found
immediately following the basic financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report alse presents budgetary
comparison schedules, the Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and the
Schedule of City's Contributions as required supplementary information. The City adopts an annual
cperafing budget for all govemmental funds. A budgetary comparison scheduie has been provided for
the General Fund as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Supplementary Information

Additionally, 2 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by OMB Circular A-133 can be
found in this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City's financial position. Assets and deferred
outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $44,815,678 as of
September 30, 2015

The City's financial position is @ product of several financial transactions Including the net result of

activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets and the
depreciation of capital assels
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPP|
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Table 1 presents a summary of the City's net position at September 30, 2015 and September 30, 2014.

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Govemmental Activities Business-type Activities
Sept 30, 2015 Sept 30, 2014 Sept 30,2015 Sept 30, 2014

Current assats $ 12,328,514 12,811,572 $ 6761812 6,082,801
Restricted assets - . 855,192 2,174,081
Capital assets, net 33,537,213 34 290 998 11,764,299 11,022,587

Total assets 45,865,727 47,102,570 19,462,303 19,289,469

Deferred outflow of resources 69,957 109,894 - 62.440
Current liatilites 3438077 4,638,652 3,570,046 3,522,357
Long-term debt outstanding 8,559.455 9,748,685 5,037,731 5.336.805

Total liabilities 11,994,532 14,387,347 8,607,777 8,859,173

Deferred inflow of resources - - - -
Net position:
Net investment in captal assets 255592,266 25,105,289 6,883 889 5,763,956
Restricted 2.575,227 3,722,684 955,182 3,342,042
Urrestricted 5773659 3,857,164 3.034 445 1,386,738

Total net position $ 33,941,152 32,825,117 § 10,874,526 10,492,736

The following are significant current year transactions that have had an impact on the Statement of Net
Pasition.

= Increase in net capital assets in the amount of $51,367.
= The principal retirement of $1,597 134 of long-term debt.

Changes in net position
The City’s total revenues for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2015 and September 30, 2014 were

$17,149,713 and 17,439,698 respectively. The total cost of all programs and services was $10,191,067
for 2015 and $10,403,785 for 2014,

Ll
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Table 2 presents a summary of the changes in net pasition for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2015

and September 30, 2014,

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Year Endod Yoar Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Sept 30, 2015 Sept 30, 2044 Sept 30, 2015 Sept 30, 2014
Revenues:
Program revenuss
Chargos for sernces $ 1,366,718 g6 061§ 5669332 5,275,782
Operating grants and cantnbuticos - 9 89 v -
Captal Grankz and Contnbuticns - - - 24,600
General revenues:
General purposa Tax Lavies 3,467,628 3833781 - -
Sales Tax £,006,611 4716565 -
Imergavernmentsl Revenus 1,528,133 50139 . -
Trarales 166,000} (68.567) 68,000 %5063
Other 183 961 1,337.761 206,200 1, 265805
Total revenues 11,206,172 10,817,339 __ 5044541 6,622,359
Expenses:
General Govemment 2721961 3,353,839 - -
Putic Safety 4852230 5179.219 - -
Publc Works 1,744 820 868,234 - -
Haa'th and wolkae 290974 - -
Culure and recreation 2783 108,443 -
Ecanomic Devalopment 45% $80,954 - -
Uty - . 5,240,003 5,022,145
Cematary . . 76,810 63,768
Inferest on long-tenm Asbies 226,285 322.056 135,885 -
Total expenses 10,191,067 10,401,785 5,461,688 5085903
Increase (Decrease) in net position 1,014,105 413584 462,843 1538456
Nat Position, Oct 1, as provicusly reported 32,825,117 32411583 10,492,736 8955280
Prior Period Adjustiment 01,950 - {101,053} -
Net Position, Oct 1, as restated 32,927,047 32411561 10,391,683 8,056,280
Net Position, Sept 3 $ 33,941,152 52825117 § 10,874,526 10,492,735

Governmental activities

The following table presents the cost of seven major City functional activities: general government, public
safety, public works, culture and recreation economic development, ulifity, cemetery, and interest on long-
term liabilities The table also shows each functional activity'’s net cost (total cost less charges for
services generated by the activities and intergovemmental aid provided for specific programs). The net
cost presents the financial burden that was placed on the State and City's taxpayers by each of these

functions.
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General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Cuture and Recreation
Health and welfare

Economic Development
Utility

Cematery

Inlerest on long-term liabilities

Total expenses

General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Culture and Recreation
Health and welfare

Economic Development
Utility

Cemetery

Interest on long-term liabilties

Total net (expense) revenue

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Table 3
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Total Expenses Total Expenses
2015 2014 2015 2014
3 2,721,981 3353839 § -
4,852 230 5179219 = %
1,744 820 856224 =
227,881 108,443 - 3
290,974 P = .
24,896 580,954 - -
4 5292 653 5022145
- - 135,885 63,758
212,739 322,096 - 4
S 10,175,521 10403785 § 5,428,638 5,085,903
Net (Expense) Revenue Net (Expense) Revenue
2015 2014 2015 2014
$ (1,835,688) (3,353.83%) § -
(4,520,125) (5,079,680) -
(1,587 ,499) (859.234) -
(227,881) {108.443)
{220,974) - -
(24,896) (577.033) - -
- - 76679 252218
. % (135.885) (37 652}
(212,739) (322,095) - -
$ {8,819,802) (10,300,324) $ 240,794 214,566

Net cost of governmental activities ($8,819,802 for 2015 and $10,300,324 for 2014) was financed
by general revenue, which is primarily made up of property and sales taxes ($8,206,339 for 2015
and $8,350,349 for 2014) and state and federal revenues ($1,528,133 for 2015 and $501,396 for

2014)

Invesiment earnings amounted to $32,101 for 2015,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-

related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on current
inflows, outflows and batances of spendable resources. Such information Is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the

City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

The financial performance of the City as a whole is reflected In its governmental funds. As the City
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $8,914 648, an increase
of $741,728, which inciudes a prior period adjustment of ($46.251). $6,776 846 or 76% of the fund

13
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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balance is unassigned, which represents the residual cassification for the general fund’s fund balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to
specific purposes within the general fund. The remaining fund batance of $1,835,802 or 24% is either
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned to indicate that it is not avadable for spending except
only for the purposes to which it Is restricted, commited or assigned.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. The increase in fund balance in the General
Fund for the fiscal year was $534,102 which Includes a prior period adjustment of (§46,251). The fund
balance of Other Governmental Funds showed an increase in the amount of $106,154, The increase
(decrease) in the fund balances for the other major funds were as follows:

Maijor Fund Creass

Airport Fund $ 25324

Economic Development Fund 3 68,826

Debt Service Fund $ 7312
BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, the City revised the annual operating budget. Budget revisions were made to address
and correct the original budgets to reflect more accurately the sources and uses of funding for the City,

A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared o the City's actual financial activity
for the General Fund is provided in this report as required supplementary informatien.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets, As of September 30, 2015, the City's total capital assets were $33,537,213 In the
governmental activities and $11,764,209 in the business type activities, including tand, buildings. building
improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, and infrastructure. This amount represents an increase
of $753,785 in governmental activities and $804,152 in the business-lype activities from 2014, Total
accumulated depreciation as of Seplember 30, 2015, was $34,966,676 and $4,743,239, and tfotal
depreciation expense for the year was $1.755657 and 3464442 in the governmental activities and
business-type activities, respectively,

Table 4
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Governmental Activities Business-lype Activities
Sept. 30,2015  Sept. 30, 2014 Sept, 30,2015 Sept. 30, 2014
Land $ 2402438 § 2402438 § 172599 % 172,593
Construction in progress - 24742 1,861,200 714000
Buikings & improvements 5,644 026 5,831,208 105,280 105,254
Machirery & equipment 15,671 - 457273 508,676
Mebile Equipmeant 1,048,120 1,153,543 100,981 120.316
Infrastructure 24 427,058 24 674,061 B.966,977 0337302
Total § 33,537,213 § 34,200,998 11,764,289 10,960,147

Additional information on the City's capital assds can be found In Note § included in this report

14



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPP!
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Debt Administration. At September 30, 2015, the City had $8,559,455 In outstanding long-term debt in
its governmental funds, of which $1,317,118 is due within one year and $5,037,761 in outstanding long-
term debt in its business-type activities of which $515,342 is due within one year. The liability for
compensated absences increased $51,522 in the govemmental funds and increased $16,736 in the
business-type activities from the prior year.

Table 5
Outstanding Long-Term Debt
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Sepi30,2015  Sept30,2014 Sept 30,2015  Sept 30,2014
General obligaban bonds payable 7,089,038 8267 423 2,990,862 3,144,187
Notes Payablke 747,261 812,285 1612290 1,743,851
Obligations under capital lease 98,648 106,000 277 158 303,154
Campensaled Absences payable 614,508 562,986 157,351 140615
Total § 8559455 § 9748695 $ 5037781 § 5336807

Additional Information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 included in this report.

CURRENT ISSUES

Fiscal Year 2015 proved to be an economically great year with sales tax being at a record high since
2008. This increase allowed for the continued efforts to fully fund cur General Fund reserves and a
hopeful outlook for the next budget year,

The City completed major grant funded capital projects which included an overay of the airport runway
and taxi and enhancements to Crosby Commons. Additional grant funding was provided to move forward
with the Highway 42 Lighting and Memorial Boulevard Overlay Project.

The natural gas cast iron gas main replacement project is now complete and Improved our unaccounted
for gas by more than 30%. With remaining revenue bond money, the City plans to further the declination
of the unaccounted for gas by focusing on other problematic areas of the City.

Mississippl Develcpment Authority, Community Development Block Grant Division, awarded the City a
$480,000 grant for improvement of the City's water system. With this grant and a surplus In cash
reserves, the Clty will be able to begin its much needed efforts in the overhauiing of the walter system
CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

If you have any questions about this report or need additional fmancial information, contact the City
Clerk's office at 203 Goodyear Bivd,, Picayune, MS 39466.



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

Crry oF Proavune, MIississipe

GOVERNMENT=-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIFPL
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2015
EXHIBITA
Primary Government
Gover I Busi 1ype
Activities Activities Lotal
ASSETS:
Cash and ather depasits s 387,544 § 4831520 § £,719.064
Restricted cash - 956,192 956,192
Investments 1,717,895 477918 2,195,813
Receivables, accounts 3,383,923 8R3.971 4,267,894
Notes Recelvable 911850 - 911,850
Prepaid expenses 211,031 13,101 224,132
Inventory 389,727 303947 693,674
Capital assets, net 33,537,213 11,764,299 4530M,512
Due from Other Funds 126,544 251,355 2077800
TOTAL ASSETS 45,865,727 19,482,303 65,348,010
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outllows of resources related 1o bond i 69,957 - 69.957
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 69957 - 69,957
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable und sccrued Habilities 714,699 438,048 1,153,347
Customer deposits - 706426 706,426
Accrued inlerest 2121 16.775 57,986
Other payables 265,292 561,621 £26,914
Due 10 other funds 251,355 1,826,544 2,077.89%
Deferred revenue 1,994,325 - 1,994,325
Due 1o other governments 188,195 . 188,195
Long-term labilitios, due within onc year
Capital Refated Detnt 131,19 515342 1.832.461
Long-term liabilities, due beyond one yoar
Capital RelJated Debt 6,627 828 4,365,068 10,992,856
Non-<capital Related Debt 614,508 157,351 771859
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,994,532 8,607,777 20,602,319
NET POSITION:
Investment in capital assets (net of related debt) 25,592,266 6,883 889 32,476,155
Restricted 2,575,227 956,192 3,531,419
Unrestricted $T13659 3034445 _ B.R08.104
TOTAL NET POSITION $  33041,152 § 10874326 § 44815678

The notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.

17
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIFPE
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPFTEMBER 30,2015
EXHIBIT C
MAJOR FUNDS
Economic et Other Total
General Airport Deyvelopment Service Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fumd Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and ogher depasias § 242257 3 327092 § 590484 § 106,301 § 440,489 § 3887544
Imvestments 1,505,013 - 151,837 - 57,045 1,717,895
e from olher furds 3022686 - . - 48451 1,071,137
Reosivables, other 33104697 - 72,726 SO0 3,383,923
Noles Receivable 19077 792773 . - 911,850
Prepaid expenses 189,842 2,926 18,263 - . 211,051
laventory . = 384,727 - . 389,727
TOTAL ASSETS $ 10573895 § 330618 S 2015810 $ 106301 S 546485 § 13573107
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES:
Liabilines:
Accounts poynble s 637616 § 704§ 59465 § 7655 3 2859 § 714,699
Doferred Revenue 1,994325 - . - - 1,994325
Due 1o ather fmds 297,870 1,080,340 7595 226 109,917 1,495,948
Due 1o ather govermments 188,195 - - - - i88,195
Other payables 242228 - - - 23,067 265,292
Total Linhili 3360231 1,087 444 67.060 7,881 135,843 4655459
Fund Balances.
Naonspendabie:
Prepaid expenses 189,842 2926 18,263 . - 211,031
Inventory - - 389,727 - - 389,727
Notes reoeivabie 119,077 - 792,773 - - 411,850
Restricted:
Capital Progects - - - - 151,858 181,858
Dehe Service 106,533 - 560,778 98,420 0,078 £45.909
Uremployment benelits - - - - 34352 34852
Commitied:
City Projects 19364 - . - 19,364
Assigmed:
Alrport - 1759,752) - - (759,752)
Economic Development - - 187,209 - - 1§7,209
Projects . - - - 113,754 113,754
Unassignod. 6,778,846 - . - - 6,778 840
Total Fund Balance 7.213,662 (756.826) 1,948,780 08420 410,642 8,914,648
TOTAL LIABILITIES £ FUND § 10573893 § 130618 $ 2015810 § 16,301 § 546485 S 13373107

The notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement,
21
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPL
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30,2015
EXHIBIT C-1

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds b 8,914,648

Amounts reported for net assets in the statement of net assets
are different because:
1. Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds, net of
accumulated depreciation of $34,966,676, 33,537,213

2. Deferred outflows and inflows are applicable to future periods and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Deferred outflows of resources related to bond issuance 69,957

3. Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (R.580,666)
Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities S 33,941,152

The notes 1o the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

MAJOR FUNDS
Feonomic
General Adrport Development
Fand Yund Fus

REVENUES
Propeny and Advalorem taxazs s 2,195 584 % - s -
License and penmits 786,293 - -
Itergovernmantal revense 5,520,561 462,142 583,941
Charges for servioes 10,308 1L, 760 9,130
Fines and forfoiturey A70,283 - -
Miscellancous $7.7%9 15,623 %6923
TOTAL REVENUES XUIDKIR 589,525 679.9%4
EXPENDITURES
General government 1,258,032 - 69,739
Public snfery 4.90%.340 - -
Public works 1,535,705 - 18,921
Health and welfare - - 290,974
Culture & recreation 19,280 115,627 -
Capital Outlay 158,963 448,564 103,262
Delnt Service:

I'rincipal - . -
Interest - - -
TOTAL EXPENIITURES 7. 880,320 S64.191 AR2 RO

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 1060 AVK 25,334 197,098
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating lransfers in 44,500 - £3,000
Oparating tronslers oul {548.245%5) . (211,272)
Sole of Assets - - -
Loan Proceeds 23.600 - =
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (480.145) - (128.272)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 580,353 25,334 68,826
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER I, 2014 6,679,560 (782,160) 1.879.924
Prior Period Adjustment (46,251) - -
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER I, 2014 vestates) 6,633,309 {7%2.160) 1.879.924
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER, 2015 s 7213662 % {746.826) S | D48 750

The notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement,
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CHEY OF FICAYUNE, MISSISSIPeI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES -- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE VEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 50, 2015
EXmeirrn

MAJOR FUNDS
Debt Other Total
Serviee Gover ) Gover ]
Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES
Property snd Advalorem txes s 972244 S - $ JI167.828
License and pormits - - TRO, 298
Intergovernmental revenue - - 6,566,643
Charges for 3erviccs - 16,123 147,321
Flives ond forfeitures - 51,822 AZ2105
Miscellancous 1178 12,226 173,739
TOTAL REVENUES 973422 80,171 11,263,930
EXPENDITURES
General govermment - 5,064 1,333,435
Public safety - - 4,908 340
Public works - 19,158 §,573,784
Health and welfire . - 290974
Culture & recrention - - 134,907
Capltal Outlay - - TIO 780
Db Service:

Principal 1,238 540 25,822 1,264 562

Interest 222,368 1.834 224202
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1460908 52478 10,440,793
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (487 486) 27,693 R23,137
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transless in 494,798 112,719 735,017
Operating transfors out - (44,500) (RO4. 017
Sale of Assels - 10,242 10,242
Loan Proceeds - - 23,600
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 494,798 7RAG| (15,158)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 7.312 106,154 TR 9T
FUND BALANCE, OCTORBER I, 2014 91008 304 488 8,172,920
Prior Perlod Adjustment —— - {(46.231)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1, 2014,r d G108 304 488 B, 12606069
VUND BALANCE, SEPTEMRBER, 2015 s 98 420 % 10,642 S 8914 6438

The notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement,
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CIUTY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015
EXHIBIT D-1

Net Change in fund balances - governmental funds S 787,979
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

1. Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation to allocate those expenditures over the life of the
assets, Capital assets purchases amounted 10 $796,626 and the depreciation
expense amounted 1o $1,755,657. (959,031)

2. Some items reported in the statement of activities do not provide or require the
use of current financial resources and therefreo are not reported as revenue/
expenditures in the governmental funds. These activities include:
Change in compensated absences (51,522)
Amortization of deferred inflows (7,773)

3, The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources (o governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any

effect on net position.
Payments of debt principal 1,264,362
Accrued interest payable 3.690
4. Proceeds from long-term liabilitics is reported as income in the govemmental
funds, but as an addition to long-term liabilities in the State of Activitics. 23,600)
Change in net assets of governmental activities § 1,014,105

The notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
EXHIBITE
Enterprise Funds
Utility Cemetery
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 4703888 § 127,632 4,831,520
Restricted cash 956,192 . 956,192
Investments 365,971 111947 477,918
Accounts recelvable (net) 8$42,628 41,343 883,971
Due from other funds 251,355 - 251,355
Prepald Asscts 13,101 - 13,101
Inventory 155,745 148,202 303,47
Total current assets 7.288, 880 429,124 7,718,041
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets (net) 11,637,792 126,507 11,764,299
TOTAL ASSETS $ 18926672 § 585631 S 19482303
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payshle s 433174 § 3474 § 438,648
Accrued interest 36,775 - 36,775
Onber payables 561,623 . 561,623
Customer deposits 706,426 - 706,426
Due to other funds 1,825,930 614 1,826,544
Long-term liabilities, due within one year 515342 . 515,342
Total current liabilitics 4079270 6,088 4,085,358
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued compensation 153,407 3944 157,351
Long-term liahilitics, due beyond one year 4,365,068 - 4,365,068
Total long-term lahilities 4518475 3944 4,522,419
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 8597745 § 10032 § 8607777
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,757,382 126,507 6,883 889
Net Assots; Restricted 956,192 . 956,192
Net Assets; Unresineled 2615353 419,092 3,034,445
TOTAL NET ASSETS S 10328927 S S45,599 § 10,874,526

The notes to the financial statements

arc an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEARS ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2015
EXHIBITF
Enterprise Punds
Utility Cemetery
Fuzd Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services 5,641,658 $ 5641658

Plot Sales - 27,614 27634

Taotal ogersting revenucs 5,641 608 764 5,660.332
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal services 1,595,901 58,223 1,654,123

Supplies 1,872,607 9,043 1,881,655

Contractual services 1,319,978 5,615 1,325,593

Depreciation 460,518 3924 464,442

Total operating expenses 5,249,000 76810 5325813

Operating mcome 392695 {49,176) 43519
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Other miscellansoes income 159,856 - 189,856

Interest incoene 15,943 a0 16,353

Interest expense (135,885) - (135,385)

Opesating Transfers In - 69,000 64,000

Total non-operating revenues (experses) 69514 69410 139324
NETINCOME 462,609 20234 482,843
Net assets, October | 0567371 §25,365 10,492,736
Prior Period Adjustment {101.053) - (101,053)
Net assets, October 1, restated 9.866,318 525,365 10,391,683
Net assels, September 39 10328827 § 543599 § 10,874,526

The notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2015

EXIIBIT G
Eaterprise Fundly
Utility Cemetery
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipls from customers s 5,696,788 $ 18995 § 5715787
Payments o suppiiers (3,704,351 ¢10,333) (1.714.684)
Paymems 10 employees 411.079,416) {63.278) (1,142.094)
Net cash flows from operaling sctivitics 913,021 (54,6123 BSE 409
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 15,943 410 16.353
Miscellancous income 189,856 - 189,856
Cash payments (10) from goverimental funds 1,639 68,970 70,6059
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 207438 69,380 276,818
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase ol capital assets (1,235,044) (1.390) (1,236,434)
Procoeds from borrowings 23,6400 - 23,600
Principal paid on capital debt (339411) - {339,411
Interest paiki on capital &bt (137,723) - (137.723)
Net cash provided by noncapltal financing activities {1,688,578) (1.390) (1,689.968)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments = {2,565) (THS) (3.350)
Net cash provided by Investing nctivities {2,565) (785) (3,350)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH {570,684) 12,593 (558,001)
Cash, October 1 0,230,764 115.039 6345303
Cash, September 30 $ 5660080 § 127632 § 5,787,712
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income $ 192,695 § (49.176) § 343,519
Adjustments to reconsile operating income 1o pel cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense AG0.518 3924 164,442
Change in ussets and Habitities:
Receivables, net of sllowances 42,057 {8,635) 33422
Prepaid assets {1,204) - (1,204)
Inventory (1L,377) - (11,377
Accounts payable (499,185} 434 (494,855)
Other payables 496,738 (2045} £94,6093
Customer deposils 13,033 - 15,033
Accrued compensation 19.746 (3,010) 16,730
Net cash flows from operating activities s 913,021 $ (54.612) $ 858,400

The notes 1o the financial statements

arc an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPL
NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2015

NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Picayune, Mississippi, incorporated under the laws of the State of Mississippi and
situated in Pearl River County, operates under the council-manager form of government and
provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety (Police and Fire),
Public Works, Health and Welfare, Culture and Recreation, and General Administrative
Services.

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with
gencrally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB is the accepted standard-sctting body for
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles, The most significant of the City’s
accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity.
For financial reporting purposes, the reporting entity includes all funds that are covered by
the oversight responsibility of the City Council.

As defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
City is considered a "primary government," The City has no component units.

The Picayunc School District has been excluded from the reporting entity because it is an
“other stand-alone government”, The school district is a related organization of, but not a
compoenent unit of the City of Picayunc. The governing authorities of the City do select a
majority of the school district’s board, but do not have ongoing financial accountability for
the school district.

Additionally during its evaluation of potential component units, management identified one
joint venture, Partners for Pearl River County, and one jointly governed organization,
Municipal Gas Authority of Mississippi.

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual
arrangement and that is owned, operated, or governed by two or more participants as a
separate and specific activity subject to joint control, in which the participations retain (a) an
ongeing financial interest or (b) an ongoing financial responsibility, Generally, the purpose
of a joint venture is to pool resources and share the costs, risks, and rewards of providing
goods or services to the venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general public
or specific service recipients.

A jointly governed organization is similar in nature to a joint venture in that it provides
goods and services to the citizenry of two or more governments. However, it does not meet
the definition of a joint venture because there is no ongoing significant financial interest or
responsibility by the participating governments.
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CITy OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2015

B.

Basis of Presentation.

The Cities basic financial statement consists of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which
provide & more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the
City as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds, if
applicable. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues and other non-exchange revenues.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities
of the City at year-end. The Government-wide Statement of Activities presents a
comparisan between direct expenses and program revenues for each function or program of
the Cities governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services
offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues, which are not
classified as program revenues, arc presented as general revenues of the City, with certain
limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the
extent to which cach governmental function is sclf-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the City,

Fund Financial Statements: Fund financial statements of the City are organized into funds,
cach of which is considered 1o be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for
by providing a separate sct of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilitics,
fund cquity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into two major
categories: governmental and proprictary, An emphasis is placed on major funds within the
governmental category.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities,
governmental activitics are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized when camed and expenses arc
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenucs, expenses, gains,
losses. assets and labilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place. Program revenues on the Statement of
Activitics consist primarily of ad-valorem taxes, state revenues, and fees for services,
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C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued).

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when “measurable and available”. Measurable means knowing or
being able to reasonably ecstimate the amount. Available means collectible within the
current period or within sixty days afler year end. Property taxes and state appropriations
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditures (including
capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general
obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This is the Cities primary operating fund. 1t accounts for all financial
resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Airport Fund - This is the fund that accounts for financial resources used for the
acquisition, construction, and maintenance of the City operated airport.

Economic Development - This is the fund that accounts for the proceeds from the
Tourism Sales tax and the sales of land in the industrial park that arc used for economic
development.

Debt Service Fund — This is the fund that accounts for debt payments for the general
obligation bonds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds;

Utility Fund — The utility fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing
body is that costs (cxpenses, including depreciation) of providing water, garbage, and
gas services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges.

Cemetery Fund — The cemetery fund accounts for the activities and operations of the
City operated cemetery,
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C.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued).

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, general are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with the or contradict guidance
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the aption of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activitics and
enterprise funds, subject 10 the same limitation, The government has ¢lected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance,

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements, Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-licu of taxes and other
charges between the govemment’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
arants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported and general revenues
rather than as program revenues, Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items,
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in conncctions with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations,
The principal operating revenues of the City enlerprise fund are charges to customers for
services. The City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and cxpenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s
palicy to use the restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Account Classifications,

The account classifications used in the financial statements conform to the classifications
prescribed in the Financial Accounting Manual for Mississippi Municipalities issued by the
Office of the State Auditor.

Encumbrances.
An encumbrance system is not maintained to account for commitments resulting from
approved purchase orders, work orders and contracts.
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F. Cash and Cash Equivalents,

The City deposits excess funds in the financial institutions selected by the Board of
Aldermen. State statutes specify how these depositories are to be selected.

Cash and cash equivalents consists of amounts on deposit in demand accounts and
certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less from the end of the fiscal
year. Cash and cash equivalents are valued at cost.

Investments.

The city is allowed, by statute, to invest excess funds in any bonds or other direct
obligations of the United States of America or the state of Mississippi, or of any county or
municipality of this state, when such county or municipal bonds have been properly
approved; or in interest-bearing time certificates of deposit or interest-bearing accounts
with any financial institution approved for the deposit of state funds; or in any type of
investment permitted by sections 27-103-33(d) and 27-105-33(¢), Miss. Code Ann, (1972).

Investments are reported at fair value, which is determined using selected bases. All of the
City’s Investments consist of Certificates of Deposits, which mature over three months
from the end of the fiscal year and arc not considered cash or cash equivalents. These
investments are reported at cost, which is the fair value.

Receivables.

The allowance method for valuing accounts receivables is used by the City. At the end of
each fiscal year, an amount necessary to bring the balance to the estimated amount of
allowance for doubtful accounts is credited to a valuation account, As a specific account is
deemed to be uncolicctible, the amount of the account is taken from both the receivable and
the allowance accounts. At the end of the subsequent fiscal year, bad debt expense is
charged with the amount necessary to bring the allowance account to the estimated total.
An aging schedule with a variable scale of percentages is used to compute the allowance
account for Enterprise Fund receivable valuation. The valuation allowance for the General
Fund police fines is based on the City’s estimation of amounts that cannot be collected.

Prepaid Expenses,
Certain payments 1o vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses in both governmental and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets.

Assets arc reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normal
understanding of the availability of the asset, Such constraints are cither externally
imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors or laws, Restricted assets in the enterprise
funds represent unspent 2013 Revenue Bond proceeds.

Inventories.,

Inventories consist of natural gas stored with the City's supplier, cemetery plots, aviation
fuel at the Picayune Municipal Airport, and parcels of land at the City industrial park.
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Inventories are stated at cost utilizing the average cost method for natural gas and aviation
fuc! and at historical cost for cemetery plots and land.

Capital Assets.

Capital assets are reported at actual or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or
deflated current replacement cost. Contributed assets are reported at estimated fair value at
the time received.

Capitalization thresholds (dollar value above which asset acquisitions arc added to the
capital asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets are reported in the
government-wide statements. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis for all
assets, except land.

The following schedule details those thresholds,

Capitalization Estimated

Policy Useful Life

Buildings 50,000 40 years
Heavy equipment 5,000 10 years
Maobile equipment 3,000 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5,000 3-7 years
Leased property under capital leases * .

(*) The threshold amount will correspond with the amounts for the asset classifications, as
listed, See Note 5 for details.

All proprietary fund capital assets continued to be carried on the books and depreciated at
their actual cost. Depreciation is charged to expense against operations.  Accumulated
depreciation is reported on proprictary fund balance sheets, Depreciation has been
provided over the estimated useful lives using straight-line method, The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Water & Sewer System 15 — 50 years
Equipment 5~ 10 years

Long-term Liabilities.

Long-term liabilitics are the unmatured principal of bonds, warrants, notes, or other forms
of non-current or long-term general obligation indebtedness. Long-term liabilities are not
limited to liabilities from debt issuances, but may also include fiabilitics on lease-purchase
agreements and other commitments, Long-term liabilities should not be reported as
liabilities in governmental funds, but should be reported in the governmental activitics
column in the government-wide statement of net assets. See Note 6 for details,
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N.

Inter-fund Transactions and Balances,
Inter-fund transactions and balances are the result of timing differences between the date
expenses/expenditures occur and the date payments are made.

Short-term (due within one vear) inter-fund loan receivables are reported as "due from
other funds" and arc considered available expendable resources. Noncurrent portions of
long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are offset equally by a
fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation.

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use unrestricted
revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Inter-fund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are
eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. See Note 4 for details for inter-fund
transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.

Equity Classifications,
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

(1) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the

outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, constructions or improvement of those assets.

(2) Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Fund Fii ial S SR

The City implemented GASB No, 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Gevernmental
Fund Type Definitions, in fiscal year ending September 30, 2011, In the fund
financial statements, povernmental funds report the following classifications of
fund balance:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not
spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,
All amounts reported as nonspendable at September 30, 2015, by the City are
nonspendable in form. The City has not reported any amounts that are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.
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Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
ather governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to ordinances passed by the the City
of Picayune’s Council, the City's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through ordinances approved by
the City of Picayune,

Assigned — includes amounts that the City intends to use for a specific purpose, but
do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.

Unassigned - includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or
restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund.
The City of Picayune reports all amounts that mect the unrestricted General Fund
Balance Policy described below as unassigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted  fund balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have
been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or
unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been
spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds. and finally unassigned
funds, as needed, unless the City's Council has provided otherwise in its
commitment or assignment actions.

Property Taxes.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied
as of January | and payable on or before February 1. Taxes are collected by Pearl River
County and remitted to the City. The County retains a 5% collection fee on mator
vehicle and mobile home taxes. The County retains a 2% collection fee on all other
taxes. Lien dates for personal and real property are in August. Delinquent tax payments,
received throughout the year, are recognized as revenue in the year received. The millage
rate for the City for January through December was 38.33 mills broken down as follows:

General Fund 26.37
Debt Service 12.29
38.66

Restrictions associated with property tax levies are established by State law which
provides that the tax levy for general purposes shall produce no more than 110% of the
amount which results from those levies’ assessments of the previous year, Uncollected
taxes were determined to be properly handled.
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Budgets and Budgetary Accounting.
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Prior to September 1. the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October.  The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A public hearing is conducted at the City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments,
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

4. The City Council may take official action to authorize transfers of budgeted amounts
between departments and fund as allowed by law.

S. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund.

6. Mississippi laws require that municipalities budget governmental fund types on a
modified — cash basis. Claims that have been incurred prior to the end of the year and
that are paid within 30 days are recorded under the accrual basis. Prior year claims
that are paid afier 30 days revert to the cash basis. All revenue is accounted for under
the cash basis. The required budgetary basis is therefore not considered a generally
accepted accounting principal.

Proprictary funds are budgeted on a modified accrual basis. Modifications to the accrual
basis include budgeting for capital expenditures, debt principal payments and for
depreciation,

During the year, amendments were made to the original budget.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a scparate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies 0 a
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then.

Deferred outflows related to charges on refunding bonds ~ $69,957
Compensated Absences.
Employees of the City accumulate sick leave at 2 minimum amount as required by state
law or at a greater amount provided by City policy. Some employees are allowed
personal leave and/or vacation leave in accordance with City policy.

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term liabilities in the
government-wide statements. The current portion of this liability is estimated based on
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historical trends. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the
compensated absence lisbility payable from expendable available financial resources.

Use of Estimates.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly. actual results could differ from those
estimates.,

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS.

The City follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize
cash management efficiency and returns, Restrictions on deposits and investments are
imposed by statutes as follows:

Deposits:  The City must advertise and accept bids for depositories no less than once
every two years as required by Section 27-105-1, Miss. Code Ann. (1972). The collateral
for public entitics’ deposits in financial institutions is held in the name of the State
Treasurer under a program cstablished by the Mississippi State Legislature and is
governed by Section 27-105-5, Miss, Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity’s
funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer.
Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securitics as collateral
against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securitics pledged
by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corperation,

Investments: Except for nonparticipating investment contracts and for participating
interest-carning investment contracts and money market investments that had a remaining
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, investments are reported at fair value
which is based on quoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment contracts such as
repurchase agreements and nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are reported at cost.
Participating intcrest-carning investment contracts and money market investments that
had a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized
cost,

Cash and Cash Equivalents.

The carrying amount of the City’s deposits with financial institutions was $9,675,256 for
2015 and $11,762,454 for 2014, and the bank balance was $9,752,565 and $11,963.410 for
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Custedial Credit Risk ~ Deposits. Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the
event of the failure of a financial institution, the city will not be able to recover deposits or
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collatera] securitics that are in the possession of an outside party. The city does not have a
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State Treasurer manages
that risk on behalf of the city. Deposits above FDIC coverage are collateralized by the
pledging financial institutions trust department or agent in the name of the Mississippi
State Treasurer on behalf of the city. As of Scptember 30, 2015, the cify's bank balance
did not have any exposure to custodial credit risk,

Investments.

Investments made by the city that arc included on the balance sheet consist of insurcd
certificates of deposit for which the securities arc held by the city or its agent in the city’s
name. The certificates carrying value and maturity dates are as follows:

Maturity
Certficate ¥ Value Date
General Fund:
1 1005006 1509013 2062016
b 1,509,013
Leonomic Development Fumd
11005019 151,837 31202086
Other Goavernmental Funds:
11005019 57045 n2noie
Enterprise ands:
11005019 477,919 122016
$ 686,80I

Interest Rate Risk. The city does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing intcrest rates.

Credit Risk. State law limits investments to those prescribed in Section 21-33-323, Miss.
Code Ann. (1972). The city does not have a formal investment policy that would further
limit its investment choices or one that addresses credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments, Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the
event of the failure of a financial institution, the city will not be able to recover deposits or
collateral securitics that are in the possession of an outside party, The city does not have a
formal investment policy for custodial credit risk. As of September 30, 2015, the city did
not have any investments to which this would apply.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Disclosures of investments by amount and issuer for any
issuer that represents five percent or more of total investments is required.  As of
September 30, 2015, the city had nine certificates of deposits with Picayune Bank and
Trust which comprised 100 % of the investment balance on Exhibit A and Exhibit E.

39



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

CiTy OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2015

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE ACCOUNT

The balance in the accounts receivable are composed of the following items:

Governmental Businesss-type Total
Activities Activities Gove W
Property and ad valorem tax $ 1,994325 § - S 1,994,325
Sales Tax 751,668 - 751,668
Franchise Tax 162,876 - 162,876
Fines Receivable, pross 4,603,916 - 4,603.916
Accounts Receivable, gross 73,331 921,267 994,598
Other receivables - - -
Total Receivables, Gross 7,586,116 921,267 8,507,383
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,202,193) (37,296) (4,239,489)
Total Receivables, Net 3 3383923 % 883,971 § 4,267.894

NOTES RECEIVABLES:

Brockway Building
On May 3, 2005, the City entered into an agreement with Farmer Fresh Produce International

LLC for the sale of the City's Brockway Buildings. The sales price of the building was
$1.100,000 at 2% interest per annum for a period of thirty years. Monthly payments of $4,066
are due on the first day of teach month. The sale is financed by the City. The agreement
includes a special provision that the City incur $35,000 to repair and modernize the Brockway
Building's administrative offices. The City and the buyer agree that the special provision will be
met by the buyer not paying the first eight payments and reducing the ninth payment. The
balance of notes receivable at September 30, 2015 was $792.773 and is included as Notes
Receivable in the Statement of Net Assets,

National Home Furnishings
On September 20, 2006, the City entered into an agreement with National Home Furnishings for

the sale of City Property and building. The sales price was $157,000 at 7% intercst per annum
for a period of twenty years. Monthly payments of $1,217 are due on the first day of cach
month. The sale is financed by the City. The balance of notes receivable as of September 30,
2015 was $119.077 and is included as Notes Receivable in the Statement of Net Assets.
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NOTE 4 - INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Timing differences between the payments of expenscs for other funds and the subsequent
reimbursements are reflected in the inter-fund accounts. The following is a summary of

inter-fund balances:
Receivable Fund

General Fund

Other Governmental Funds
Utility Fund

Payable Fund
Airport Fund S
Economic Dev Fund
Debt Service Fund
Other Governmental Funds
Lhility Fund
Cemetery Fund
General Fund
Airport Fund
General Fund

§

Amount
1,078,404

7595
226

109917
1,825,930

614

48,451

1,936

249419
3,322492

The primary purpose of the inter-fund balances outstanding at the end of the year include
outstanding charges by one fund to another for services or goods, subsidy commitments
outstanding at year-end, and other miscellaneous receivables/payables between funds.

Transfers In
General Fund
Economic Development Fund
Debt Service Fund

Other Governmental Funds
Cemetery Fund

Transfers Out
Other Governmental Funds S
General Fund
Economic Development Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund

Amount

44,500

83,000
211,272
283,526
112,719

69,000
804,017

The transfers represent board approved operating transfers for school operations and planning

purposes,
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital asscts for governmental activities:

Begln End

Balance Constrection Balance

104214 Additions  Delstions  Completed  Adjustment  U0/015
Land § 240243 3§ - § CR - § 240243
Consruction In Progress 24,742 710,788 {340.777) 205,246 -
Toks nondegeeciatie capdal assels 2,427 180 710,788 (340.777) 205248 2402438
Deprecisble caphal assets’
Buldings anet Improvements 7,708,879 - - 7,708,879
Machnery & Equpment 1,285,696 16,163 - 1,301,664
Moble Equipment 3,792,706 53546 - 346,351
Infrastnocture 62 287 857 16,023 80777 53,244,367
Total depreciable candal assets 65,074,837 85,837 880,777 66,101,451
Less scoumulzied deprecalion e,
Buildings and Improvements 1,877 671 187,182 - 2,084883
Machiery § Equpment 1,2056%6 85,302 2 1,371,068
Avckike Equpment 2,632,136 164,075 2798231
Inkastructure 277 413456 1,319,008 - 28,732,504
Tolal accumulated deprecistion 33211019 1,758,667 - 34566576
Govammental Actiites, captal assete, net 3 34290008 §  (959001) § $ - § 25245 3 33530213

Adjustments were made to add additional construction in progress at the beginning of the year

that was mistakenly expensed,

Depreciation expense was charged 1o the following governmental functions:

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works

Economic Development

Culture & Recreation
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for proprictary activities:

Bagin End
Balance Construction Balance
1012014 Aoditions Delotions ~ Compieted  Adustment  $302015
I ; ¢
Land § s - 8 - 8 - 3 1Tz
Construction in Progress 714,00 1,247,208 - - . 1,051.200
Tatal nor-daprecable capha assels 895,599 1,247 208 - . - 2,133,808
Deprecably capila! assets,
Buildings and Impeovements 150571 .8 . - 150,571
Machinery 8 Equipment 1,156,712 . - . - 1,186,712
Motie Eqipment 527,307 2788 . - - 648,692
infrastucture 12,417,755 - . - - 12,417,755
Total 14,354,345 22385 . - - 14,373,730
Buildings and Improvements 44217 974 : X . 529
Machinery & Equipement 46,008 52403 - . - 688,433
Mobie Equipment 507,951 40,740 - . 548,731
Infrasinacture 3090453 370,325 . - - 3,450,778
Tetal accumulated deprediation 4218797 464,442 . 5 . 4,743,239
Proprietary Activifies, capital assets nel. 3 10050147 §  B05152 3 S - 3 . § 11764209

Depreciation expense charged to the enterprise fund totaled $464,442.

Construction Commitment: Remaining Funding
Contract ami Paid Commitment Source
Gas System 3,000,000 1.868,119 1,131,881 Revenue Bond
City Bam Elev Tank 166,000 93,091 72909 Contingency Funds
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NOTE 6 - LONG ~ TERM LIABILITIES

The following are the changes in long-term liabilities and other obligations for govemmental
activities:
Balance Balance Due within
100172014 Additions Payments 91302015 One Year

General Obligation Bonds Payable  § $,267423 § - S(1L1683835) $ T.0%9038 § 1211677
Notes Payable 812286 - (65.025) 747,261 62,083
Obligations under Capital Leases 106,000 23,600 (30,952) 98.648 34,086
Compensated Absences Payable 562,986 31,522 - 614,508 -

Total $ 0748695 § 75122 § (1.264.362) § 8,559,435 § 1307846

The following are the changes in long-term liabilities and other obligations for proprietary
activitics:

Balame Balance Due within

W01 Additions  Payments  Adjustment 9302014 One Year
General Otligation Bonds Payable  § 3,144,187 § -8 (46,6130 8 (6610) S 20962 § 15338
Notes Payable 1,748,831 - {136,56¢) . 1,612,290 95314
Obligations under Capital Leases 303,154 13,600 (49,596) - 217,158 266,505
Compensated Absences Puysble 140,615 16,736 . - 157351 .
Total $ 5336807 § 40336 § (33770 § (6610) § 5037761 § 505342
General Obligation Bonds Pavable

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the city.
General obligation bonds currently outstanding in the Governmental Funds arc as follows:

Interest Issue Maturity Amount Amourt
Description Rate Date Date fssued Qutstancing
1. General obligation, Series 2003 290%  3/19/2008  3/1/2018 § 500,000 $ 175,000
2. General Coligation, Series 2010 Varizble  8/5/2010  7/1/2020 7,700,000 4,230,000
3. General Dbligation Refunding , Series 2014 Varigble  6/30/2014  7/1/2024 3,057,423 2,694,038
$ 7095038
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The following is a schedule by years of the total payments due on this debt:

1. General Obligation Bonds, Series 2008:

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 55,000 4278 59,278
2017 60,000 2,610 62,610
2018 60,000 870 60,870
Total $ 175000 § 7.758 § 182,758
2. General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 780,000 112,960 892,960
2m7 810,000 94,240 904,240
2018 845,000 73,990 918,990
2019 880,000 51,175 931,175
2020 915,000 26,535 941.535
Total § 4230000 $§ 358900 $ 4588900
3. General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal  Interest Tota
2016 376,677 55,038 431,715
2017 390,440 47,522 437,962
2018 402,972 39,607 442,579
2019 407,226 31,526 438,752
2020 286,723 22,449 309,172
2021 - 2024 830,000 50476 880,476
Total $ 2,694,038 S 246618 3§ 2940656
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General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the city.

General obligation bonds currently outstanding in the Proprietary Funds are as follows:

Interest lssue Maturity Amount Amaunt
Description Rate Date Date lssued Qutstanding
1, Utiizy System Revenue Bongs, Series 2013 Variable  4/1/2013  4/3/1933 § 3000000 § 2,785,000
2. General Obligation Refuncing, Serles 2014 Variable  §/30/2012  2/1/2024 242,578 205,962
§ 2990962

I. Utility System Revenuc Bonds, Series 2013

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 115,000 75,600 190,600
2017 120,000 72,150 192,150
2018 120,000 69,150 189,150
2019 125,000 66,150 191,150
2020 130,000 63,025 193,025
2021 - 2025 725,000 264,063 989,063
2026 - 2030 860,000 164,250 1,024,250
2031 -2033 590,000 35,850 625,850
Tozal $ 2785000 § 810,238 § 3,595.218

2. General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 38,323 5,600 43,923
2017 39,560 4,815 44,375
2018 42,028 4,131 46,159
2019 42,774 3311 46,085
2020 43,277 3,388 46,665
Total § 205962 § 21245 § 227207
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The amount of indebtedness that can be incurred by the city is limited by state statute. Total
outstanding debt during a year can be no greater than 15% of assessed value of the taxable
property within the City, according to the then last completed assessment for taxation. However,
the limitation is increased to 20% whenever a city issues bonds to repair or replace washed out or
collapsed bridges on the public roads of the city. As of Scptember 30, 2015 the amount of
outstanding debt was equal 1o 11% of the latest property assessments.

Notes Pavable

Debt currently cutstanding in the Governmental Funds is as follows:

Interest lssue Naturity Amount Amount
Desaription Rate Date Date lssued Qutstanding
1. MDA Loan No. 0524 3.00% 2/1/2008 212028 $ 272538 § 186,483
2. MCA for airport infrastructure 300%  3/25/2002  6/1/2022 26,850 106,015
3. MDA for airport infrastructire 300%  6/14/2002 612022 66,317 26,886
4, MDA for airport Infrastructure 3.00% 72001 /3112027 650,000 AN 817
5 747,261
1. MDA Loan No. 0524
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 12,676 5,462 18,138

2007 13,062 5,076 18,138

2018 13,459 4,679 18,138

2019 13,869 4,269 18,138

2020 14,290 3,848 18,138

2021 -2025 78,242 12,447 90,689

2026 - 2027 40.885 3072 43,957

Total § 186483 § 38,853 § 225336

2. MDA for airport infrastructure
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal  Interest Total

2016 14,986 2,973 17,959

2017 15441 2,518 17,959

2018 15911 2,048 17.959

2019 17,787 172 17,959

2020 16,936 1,023 17,959

2021 - 2022 24,954 564 25518

Total $ 106015 § 9208 § 115313
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3, MDA for airport infrastructurc

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 3,655 758 4413
2007 3,766 647 4413
2018 3,881 532 4413
2019 3,999 414 4,413
2020 4,121 292 4413
2021 - 2022 7404 200 7.664
Total $§ 26886 § 2,843 § 20,729
4. MDA for airport infrastructure
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 30,766 12,493 43.259
2017 31,702 11,557 43,259
2018 32,666 10,593 43,259
2019 33,660 9,599 43,259
2020 34,683 8,576 43,259
2021 - 2025 189,806 26,397 216,293
2026 - 2027 74,504 2,146 76,650
Total $ 427877 § 81361 § 509238
Debt currently outstanding in the Proprietary Funds is as follows:
Interest lssue Maturity Amaount Amount
Description Rate Date Date Issued Outstanding
1. NS Dept of Health 3.50% 3/1/2008 12023 § 53005 $ 127610
2. Cap Loan - AMR Project 2.00% 37/2011  3/1/1932 1,300,000 990,718
3. Cap Loan - Water Improvement 200%  11/1/2010  11/4/1932 562,530 493 362
$ 161229
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1. MS Dept of Health-Drinking Water Systems Improvements

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 13,648 4219 17,867
2017 14,134 3,733 17,867
2018 14,636 3,231 17,867
2019 15,157 2,710 17.867
2020 15,696 27 17.867
2021 -2024 54339 3,109 57448
Total § 127610 S 19,173 $ 146,783

2. Cap Loan — AMR Project

Yecar Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 57,370 21,547 78,917
2007 58,528 20,390 78918
2018 60,813 18,105 78918
2019 62,041 16,877 78,918
2020 63,203 15,625 78918
2021 -2025 336,151 58439 394,590
2026 - 2030 352,522 22,940 375,462
Total $ 990,718 $ 173923 § 1,164,641

3. CAP Loan -~ Water Improvement

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 24,496 9,653 34,149
2017 24,991 9,158 34,149
2018 25,495 8,654 34,149
2019 26,010 8,139 34,149
2020 26,5358 7.614 34,149
2021 - 2025 140.927 29818 170,745
2026 - 2030 155,736 15,009 170,745
2031 - 2033 69,772 1,520 71,292
Total § 493962 § 89.565 § 583,527
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Oblipations under Capital Lease

Debt currently outstanding in the Governmental Funds is as follows:

Interast lssue Maturity Amount Amount
Deseription Rate Date Date Issued Outstanding
1. Capital Lease-Special Police Drug Fund 1.73% /132014 1/12017 § 106,000 § 80,178
2. Capital Lease-1/2 Xubota Tractor 1.38% 1201015 1/20/2018 23,600 18,470
S 98,648

1. Capital Lease-Special Police Drug Fund

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal  Inferest Total
2016 26,269 1,387 27,656
2017 26,723 933 27,656
2018 27,186 470 27,656
Total b 80,178 § 2790 § 82,968

2. Capital Lease ~ % Kubota Tractor

Year Ending
Sept 30 Prinipal ~ Interest Total
2016 7817 280 8,097
2017 7,965 132 5.097
2018 2,688 11 2,699
Total S 18,470 S 423 $ 18,893

Debt currently outstanding in the Proprietary Funds is as follows:

Interest lssue Maturity Amount Amaunt
Desoription Rate Date Date lssued QOutstanding
1 Capital Lease-Caterpiflar 320EL 161% 5/9/2013 G9E  $ 203427 § 149221
2. Capital Lease-Caterpillar 305E Mini Excavator 181% 7222013 82216 61,353 38483
3. Capital Lease-Caterpilisr 420F Backhoe 161% 5/9/2013  GW1B 97,550 70984
4. Capital Lease-1/2 Xubotz Tractor 1.88% 1/20/2005 VN8 23,600 18470
$ 277,158
1. Capital Lease-Caterpillar 320-EL
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 149,221 1,147 150,368
Total $ 149221 S 1,147 § 150368
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2. Capital Lease — Caterpillar 305E Mini Excavator

Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 38,483 532 39,015
Total $ 8483 § 352§ 39,015
3. Capital Lease — Caterpiltar 420F Backhoe
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 70,984 727 71,711
Total $ 70,984 § 727 % 71,711
4. Capital Lease — ¥ Kubota Tractor
Year Ending
Sept 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 s 7817 § 280 S 8,097
2007 7,965 132 8,007
2018 2,688 1 2,699
Total b 18470 § 423 S 18,893
NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan_Description. The City contributes to the Public Employees™ Retirement System of

Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, PERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and bencficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state law
and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature, PERS issucs a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary

information,

That report may be obtained by writing to Public Employees’ Retirement System of
Mississippi, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201 or by calling (601)

359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.
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Funding Policy. PERS members are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary
and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate, The current rate is
15.75% of annual covered payroll, The contribution requirements of PERS members and
employers are cstablished and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature.
The City's contributions to PERS for the fiscal years ending Scptember 30, 2015, 2014 and
2013 were $841,653, $856,149 and $768,054 respectively, which equaled the required
contributions for cach year.

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of. damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
Except as described below, the City carrics commercial insurance for these risks, Settled
claims resulting from these insured risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years,

Participation in Public Entity Risk Pool:

The City participates in the Mississippi Municipal Liability Plan (MMLD), an insurance-
purchasing pool. The City, along with other municipalities as a group, purchased insurance
to insure against losses related (o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters, Settled claims resulting from these insured risks have
not exceeded the City's insurance coverage since it joined the pool.

The City is a member of the Mississippi Municipal Workers Compensation Group
(MMWCG). The group is a risk-sharing poal; such a pool is frequently referred to as a self-
insurance pool, MMWCG covers risks of loss arising from injuries to the City’s employees.
The Mississippi Workers' Compensation Commission requires that an indemnity agreement
be exccuted by each member in a workers’ compensation self-insurance pool for the purpose
of jointly and severally binding the pool and cach of the employers comprising the group 1o
meet the workers' compensation obligations of cach member. Each member of the
MMWCG contributes quarterly to a fund held in trust,

The funds in the trust account are used to pay any claim up to $500,000, For a claim
exceeding $500,000, MMWCG has insurance, which will pay the excess up to the statutory
limit. 1f total claims during a year were (o deplete the trust account, then the pool members
would be required to pay for the deficiencies. The City has not had an additional assessment
for excess losses incurred by the pool.

NOTE 9 - MisSissiprt MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE

The Mississippi Compliance Questionnaire was completed and entered into the minutes as
prescribed by law. A review of the questionnaire revealed that all items were answered yes
or not applicable.
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NOTE 10 - RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY BASIS TO ACCRUAL

Mississippi Jaw requires that municipalities’ budget on a modified-cash basis. Claims that
have been incurred prior to the end of the year and that are paid within 30 days are recorded
under the accrual basis. Prior vear claims that arc paid after 30 days revert to the cash basis.
All revenue is accounted for under the cash basis. All budgeted amounts lapse at year end.

The required budgetary basis is therefore not considered a generally accepted nccounting
principle.

The following schedule reconciles the fund balances on the budgetary basis to the GAAP
basis for the general fund:

Gengral Fund:
Fund balance (budgetary basis) $7.213,662
Adjustment to GAAP basis:
Accrued revenues (64,168)
Fund balance (GAAP basis), Sept, 30 $7,149,494

Economic Development Fund;

Fund balance (budgetary basis) $£1,948,750
Adjustment to GAAP basis:

Accrued revenues __(36,711)
Fund balance (GAAP basis), Sept. 30 $1.912,039

NOTE 12 - JOINT VENTURES AND JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

Joint Venture

Partners for Pearl River County (PFPRC) is a joint venture between the City, the City of
Poplarville, and Pearl River County. PFPRC is funded primarily by contributions received
from its members. Each year the City determines the amount of support to be provided to
PFPRC based on availability of City resources. Consequently, any potential future financial
benefit or burden to the City resulting from activities performed by PRPRC is not
determinable at this time.

Jointly Governed Organization

The City is a member of the Municipal Gas Authority of Mississippi (MGAM), created as a
local distribution company by Mississippi State Code Scction 77-6-1 for the purpose of
assisting municipal gas systems in the acquisition, transportation and management of
adequate, dependable and economic natural gas districts, all located in the State of
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Mississippi. Each voting member appoints one commissioner to MGAM's Board of
Commissioners who has oversight responsibility of the operation of MGAM. The primary
source of revenue for MGAM is from gas supply contracts with each of its members which
require the members 10 take their entire gas supply or a fixed portion from GMAM and
require MGAM to provide that supply. MGAM is considered to be a jointly governed
organization since no member can unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of
MGAM and its members do not have an ongoing financial responsibility. The City entered
into a gas supply contract for purchases of gas effective April 1, 2001, for an initial term of
ten years with an option to extend the term of the Agreement by an additional 24 months at
the expiration of the primary term. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, payments
to MGAM for pas purchases amount to $1,173,142.

NOTE 13— PRIOR PERIOD ADIUSTMENTS

A summary of significant Net Position/Fund Balance adjustments is &s follows:

Exhibit B - Statement of Activities

1. Correction of capital assets s 205,246
2. Correction of bond issuance costs (78,415)
3. Correct of accrued interest (24,901)

Total Prior Period Adjustment S 101,930

Business-type Activities:
1. Correction of bond issuance ¢osts b3 (62,440)
2. Correction of acerued interest (38,613)
s (101,059
Exhibit D - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Explanation Amount
General Fund

1. Correction of prior year receivables from Picayune Schools % 111,522
2. Correction of error in other payables for court assessments (157,773)
Total 5 (46,251)
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C1TY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

NOTE 14 ~ SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the Statement of Net Position date but before the financial statements
arc available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the Statement of Net
Position date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements. Subscquent events
which provide evidence about conditions that existed afier the Statement of Net Position date
require disclosure in the accompanying notes.

Management of the City of Picayune, Mississippi evaluated the activity of the city through
February 1, 2016, (the date the financial statements were available to be issued), and
determined that no subsequent events have occurred that require disclosure in the notes to the
financial statements.
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CImv OF PICAYUNE, VMISS1SSIPP]

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

56



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
SCHEDULE 1a

Variances
Pasitive (Negative)
Budgeted Amousts Original Fimal
Original Fimal Actual 1o Final to Actual
REVENUES
Peoperty and Advalorem laxes $ 19U4934 § 1994934 § 2061011 § - 3 66,077
License and pesmits 755340 24 840 786,293 49,500 (18,347)
Intergovernnwental revenmos 5.336,3%8 6,141,412 5,590,966 205,024 (550,446)
Charges for scevices 28,100 28,100 10,308 - {17,792}
Fines iy forfeisures 350,700 350,700 370,283 - 19581
Miscelimeous 34,000 09,549 57,789 35,549 (11,760)
TOTAL REVENUES 8,499 462 9,389,535 8.876.650 90,073 (512,88%)
EXPENDITURES
Generol govermment 1,295,028 1,337,477 1,258,032 {42.449) 79,445
Public safety 4,910,707 5,088,143 4,908 340 (147 43%) 149,805
Poblic works 1,367,188 1,445 040 1,535,705 (77.852) (90,665)
Culture & recreation 19.280 19,280 19,280 - -
Cupital outlay 554 8 T 482 158,963 {146,662) 542,519
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2 147,023 B.561.424 7,880,320 {414.401) Rl I
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 352,434 828111 996,330 475,612 168,219
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in RO.879 144,500 44,500 63,621 (100,000}
Operating transfers out (1333183 (548.246) (548.245)  (114928) |
Loan Proceeds - - 23,600 - 23,600
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES (352,439) {(103.746) (480,145) _ (51,307 (76.399)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE B 424,365 £16,185 424,365 91.820
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1, 2014 6,679,560 6,679,560 6,679,560 - .
Prior Period Adjustment - - (46,251) . (46,251)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1, 2014, I 6.679.560 6,679,560 6,633,309 - (46.251)
FUND BALANCE, SEPFTEMBER, 2015 6679560 § 7103925 $7.149.494 § 424365 $ 45.569

The notes to the required supplementary
information are an integral part of this statcments,

57



REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSI'P)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE AIRPORT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2015

SCHEDULE 1l
Varlances
Positive {Negative)
Budgzeted Amounts Original Final
Original Flmal Actunl to Final 1o Actual

REVENUES
Intergovemmental revenues $ 500000 § 459116 462142 & (40,082) § 2,826
Charges for serviees 91,140 91,140 111,760 - 20,620
Miscelisnsous 4,000 19,623 15,023 15,623 (4,000)
TOTAL REVENIUES 595,140 30079 589,525 (25.001) 19,446
EXPENDITURES
CuMure & rocreatson 119,924 125,524 115,627 (5.600) V897
Capstal ontiay 550,000 444 564 A4H.564 101 436 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 69,924 574,088 64191 45 836 9,897
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (74,784) {4,00%) 25334 70,775 19,343
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES - - - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (74,784) (4.009) 25,334 70,775 29,343
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1,2014 (782,160}  (782,160) (7R2,160) - -
Prior Period Adjustment . < < a a
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1, 2014, restated (782,160} (782,160) (782,160) - -
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER, 2015 S (856,944) $(786,169) § (756,826) § 70775 $ 29,343

The notes to the required supplementary

information are an integral part of this statements.
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSI'PY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEBER 30, 2015

SCHEDULE I
Varlances
Positlve (Negative)
Badgeted Amounts Orlginal Final
Original Flnal Actoal 10 Final o Actunl

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revennes 415000 455000 § 547230 § 40000 S 92,230
Charges for services - 9,030 9,130
Miscellancoss 4,288 4,288 £6,923 82638
TOTAL REVENUES 419,288 459,288 643 281 40,000 183,995
EXPENDITURES
General goverument - 69,739 - (09,739)
Public works - - 18,921 - (18,921)
Health & welfare 310412 325412 290,974 (ES,000) 14438
Capital outlay - - 103,262 - (103,262}
Debt service - 5.000 - (5,000) 5.000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 310412 130412 452,896 (20,000) (152.484)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 108,876 128 876 160,387 20.000 jLsn
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating wansfors in 104,500 83,000 83,000 (21,500) -
Operating transfers out {213,626) (213,6206) {211,272) 2,354
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES _ (109,126) (130.,626) (128,272) (21,500} 2354
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {230) (1,750) 32,118 (1.500) 33,865
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1, 2014 1,879,924 1,879,924 1.879.924 -
Prior Period Adjustment - - - -
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1, 201 4,restated 1.879.924 1,879,924 1,874,924 - -

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER, 2015

The notes to the required supplementary

$1.879674 $ 1878174 $1912,039 § (1.500) §

33.865

information arc an integral part of this statements,
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CITy OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

{1) Basis of Presentation,

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the original legally adopted budget, the final
legally adopted budget, the actual data on the budgetary basis, variances between the original
budget and the final budget, and variances between the final budget and the actual data on the
budgetary basis.

(2) Budget amendments and revisions.
The budget is adopted by the City Council. Amendments can be made of the approval of the

Council. A budgetary comparison is presented for the general fund consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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CITy OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPL

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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City of Picayune, MS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Federal CFDA  Federal Expenditures(s)
Number
Department of Homeland Security Direct Programs
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 S 10491
Total Department of Homeland Security 10,491
United States Department of Justice Direct Programs
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16,588
Total United States Department of Justice 11,639
Depertment of Tronsportation Direct Programs
State and Community Highway Safety 20,600 599
Highway Pianning and Construction 20.205 58,497
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 448 564
Technical Assistance Grants 20,710 12,750
TJotal Department of Transportation 520,410
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 542,540
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIFPI
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS

o SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Coverage with Travelers:
Mayor $100,000
Aldermen 100,000
Deputy Clerks 50,000
Accounting Department 50,000
Utility Supervisor 50,000
Utility Asst. Supervisor 50,000
Utility Clerks 50,000

Coverage with RLU Insurance Company:

City Clerk 50,000
City Manager 50,000
Deputy Clerk 50,000
Police Chief 50,000
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CITy OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI

RErorTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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HoLr & ASSOCIATES, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
W. David Dill, CPA H. 1. Holt, CPA
Julic M. Uher, CPA founder (1915-1997)

Kan M. Blackledge. CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council, City Manager and City Clerk
City of Picayune, Mississippi

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Picayune, State Mississippi. as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Picayune, State Mississippi's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thercon dated February 1, 2016,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In plansing and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of
Picayune, State Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Picayune, State Mississippi's internal control,
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Picayune, State
Mississippi’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencics, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important cnough Lo merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this scction and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
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material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining rcasonable assurance about whether the City of Picayune, State
Mississippi's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required (o be reported under Govermment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely (o describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the cffectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in secordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

ol & Ascociates. PLLC
February 1, 2016
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HoLr & ASSOCIATES, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
W. David Dill, CPA H. 1. Holt. CPA
Julie M. Uher, CPA Founder (1915-1997)

Kari M_ Blackledge, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB
CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council, City Manager and City Clerk
City of Picayune, Mississippi

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have asudited City of Picayune, Mississippi's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of City of Picayune, Mississippi’s major federal programs for
the year ended September 30, 2013, City of Picayune, Mississippi's major federal programs are
identificd in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Picayune,
Mississippi’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Picayune,
Mississippi’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We helieve that our audit provides a reasenable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of
Picayune, Mississippi's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Picayune, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requircments referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on cach of
its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Picayune, Mississippi is responsible for cstablishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Picayune,
Mississippi's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for cach major federal program and to test and report on intemnal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal contral over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of City of Picayune, Mississippi’s internal control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
aver compliance does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencics, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a4 material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purposc described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intcrnal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficicncies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control aver compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Folt & Associates, PLLC
Laurel, MS

February 1, 2016
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Horr & ASSOCIATES, PLLC

CERTINIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

W. David Dill, CPA . 1. Holt, CPA
Julic M. Uher, CPA Founder (F215-1997)
Kari M. Blackledge, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council, City Manager and City Clerk
City of Picayune, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activitics, business-type activities
and each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Picayune as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated February 1.
2016. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Audifing Standards.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly. we do not express such an opinion.

The results of those procedures performed to test compliance with certain other state laws and
regulations and our audit of the financial statements disclosed no immaterial instances of
noncompliance with other state laws and regulations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, city officials and

federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other that
these specified parties.

Folt & Associates, PLLE
Laurel, MS
February 1, 2016
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City of Picayune, Mississippi
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements:
1. Type of auditor's report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified

2. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No.

3. Internal control over financial reporting:
a Material weakness{es) identified? No.

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to - No.
be material weakness(es)?

Federal Awards:

4. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal Unmaodified
programs:

5. Internal control over major programs:
a. Material weakness(es) identified? No.
b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to None reported.

be material weakness(es)?
6. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in No.

accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337
7. Federal programs identified as major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.106 Airport Improvement Program

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B $300,000
programs:

9, Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes.
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City of Picayune, Mississippi
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Section II: Financial Statement Findings

The results of our tests did not disclose any findings related to the financial statements that arc
required to be reported by Government Auditing Standards.

Section I1I: Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

The results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned costs refated to the federal
awards

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO ADVERTISE THE SALE OF PROPERTY

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Valente to advertise for the sale of property of parcel 617-111-001-03-064-00 (Carter
Street PPIN 22031).
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT # 1 FOR THE GENERAL FUND, UTILITY FUND,

WESTSIDE REDEVELOPMENT FUND, TOURISM FUND AND WATER
CONTINGENCY FUND

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to approve Budget Amendment #1 for the General Fund, Utility Fund,
Westside Redevelopment Fund, Tourism Fund and Water Contingency Fund.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION WAS MADE TO HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPERTY CLEAN UP

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to hold a Public Hearing on property clean up.
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO DECLARE 707 S. HAUGH AVE. A PUBLIC NUISANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to declare property at 707 S. Haugh Ave. (PPIN 26746) a public nuisance and
allow a 60-day extension.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO DECLARE 2311 JACKSON LANDING RD. A PUBLIC NUISANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Valente to declare 2311 Jackson Landing Rd. (PPIN 24987) a public nuisance.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO DECLARE 736 MEMORIAL BLVD A PUBLIC NUISANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to declare 736 Memorial Blvd. (PPIN 27255) a public nuisance.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
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ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None

ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO DECLARE 836 HERRIN DRIVE A PUBLIC NUISANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Valente to declare 836 Herrin Drive (PPIN 25366) a public nuisance and allow a 60-day
extension.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO DECLARE 207 WESTCHESTER DRIVE A PUBLIC NUSIANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to declare 207 Westchester Drive (PPIN 22834) a public nuisance.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO DECLARE 2611 HICKMAN AVENUE A PUBLIC NUISANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to declare 2611 Hickman Avenue (PPIN 25250) a public nuisance.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.
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MOTION TO DECLARE 960 SHIRLEY DRIVE A PUBLIC NUISANCE

Motion was made by Council Member Stevens, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to declare 960 Shirley Drive (PPIN 25080) a public nuisance.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPERY CLEAN UP

Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to close Public Hearing on property clean up.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE MAYOR TO SIGN CONTRACT WITH US DEPARTMENT OF
AGRICULTURE WILDLIFE SERVICES

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Valente to authorize Mayor to sign contract with U.S. Department of Agriculture Wildlife
Services for trapping and removal of beavers in City drainage systems.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens Breland and
Gouguet

VOTING NAY: Mayor Ed Pinero
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.
ADOPT PLAZA STONE COMBO (RECTANGLE AND SQUARE) CONCRETE PAVER

IN OLD TOWN BLEND COLOR MANUFACTURED BY PAVESTONE AS THE
STANDARD STONE TO BE USED IN DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to adopt Plaza Stone Combo (Rectangle and square) Concrete Paver in Old
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Town Blend Color Manufacture by Pavestone as the Standard Stone to be used in the
Downtown Historic District and authorize Mayor to sign related documents.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

ADOPT LIGHTING STANDARDS FOR THE DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

Motion was made by Council Member Gouguet, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to adopt lighting standards for the Downtown Historic District as follows:
1) Stresscrete fluted spun concrete direct burial pole
2) King Luminiaire K 118R-EAR-III-150-M0G-PSMH-120-K14-F1-BK
and authorize Mayor to sign related documents.
The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE MAYOR’S SIGNATURE ON PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING
CONTRACT FOR GREENSPACE PARK

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to authorize Mayor's signature on Preliminary Engineering Contract for
Greenspace Park.
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. Citvof
Picdytine

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING CONTRACT
FOR

CITY OF PICAYUNE
ENHANCEMENT OF GREENSPACE PARK
ALONG GOODYEAR BOULEVARD
PROJECT NO. STP-9603-00(030) LPA106907-701000

PEARL RIVER COUNTY, MS

FEBRUARY 2016

Prepared By:

» = DUNGAN

am ENGINEERING

925 GOODYEAR BOULEVARD
PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI 39466
(601) 799-1037
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PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT

City of Picayune — Greenspace Park Enhancement Project
Project No. STP-9603-00(003)LPA /106907-701000
Pearl River County

THIS CONTRACT, is made and entered ntn by and between the City of Picayune, a budy Politic of
the Stte of Mississippi (the "LPA"), and, Dungan Engineering, P.A, {the "CONSULTANT™),
Corpotation, duly registered to do business in the State of Mississippi, whose address for muiling is 925
Goodyear Blvd, Picayune, MS, 39466, cffective as of the date of latest excoution below,

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the LPA proposes to perform Enhancements of the Existing Greenspace Park
along Goodyear Boulevard, s provided for in Projece No. STP-9603-00(003)LPA/106907-701000,
heseimafter called the "PROJECT; and,

WHEREAS, the 1PA desires to engage 2 qualified and experienced CONSULTANT to perform
engincering services in conncetion with the PROJECT, all of which are hercinafter ealled the "SERVICES",
and,

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has represented ro the LPA thar it is experienced and qualified to
provide those services, and the LPA has relied upon such representation; and,

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT herein was chosen for their expertise In performing the services in
connection with the PROJECT and found sansfactory by the LPA: which is now desirous of entering into a
contract;

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT herein was chosen through the LPA Consultant Selection Process
pussuant o Mississippi Department of Transporsation (hereinafter "MDOT™) LPA Project Development
Manual and pursuant to Federal Highway Administation (“FHWA") regulations, Enginecring and Design
Related Service Coatruets, 23 C.FR. Pare 172 {as amended) and found satisfactory;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promiscs and covenants contuned
herein and for pther good and valuable considerations flowing unto the parties, the receipt and sufficency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the LPA and the CONSULTANT do hereby contract and agree as follonws:

ARTICLE I, GENERAL RECITALS
CONSULTANT shall, for the agreed fees, furnish all engineering services and matesials requited to
perform the tasks descibed in the Scope of Wotk for the proposed tansportation project. In o doing,
CONSULTANT shall meet the current industry standards (and any MDXOT or LPA standards identfied in
Exhibit 2) a5 to geneml format and content and in addidon thereto, any special reguirements of the LPA

THE LPA, in support of CONSULTANT will provide the CONSULTANT a Scope of Work shown
in "Exhibit 2 hereto and any other data which may be of assistance to CONSULTANT and within the
possession and control of the LPA,
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Manuals, guides, and specificagons applicable to this CONTRACT shall be thase approved and/or
adopted by MDOT and in effect on the effective date of this CONTRACT, unless otherwise specified in this
Contract o1 subsequently directed by MDOT during the course of the CONTRACT.

ARTICLE IL._SCOPE OF WORK
The CONSULTANT shall conduct the SERVICES in accordance with the Scope of Work atached 1o
this CONTRACT as "Exhibit 2" and made a part heteof as if fully set forth hersn. The performance of the
SERVICES referred to in "Exhibit 2% shall be the ptimary basis for measurement of perfotmance under this
CONTRACT. The LPA specifically reserves she right and privilege t enlarge or reduce the scope; or to cancel
this CONTRACT arany time.

This CONTRACT shall commence upon the latest date of execution below and continue until such
time as the above named project is suceessfully completed 1o the satisfaction of the IPA ar uni! December 31,
2016, CIOT, at which time this CONTRACT shall absolutely and finally terminate.

During the term of this CONTRACT, the LPA reserves the mght to rerminate this CONTRACT in
whole o in part, at any time, with or without cause, upon seven (7} days writeen notice to the CONSULTANT,
notwithstanding any fust claims by the CONSULTANT for payment of SERVICES rendered prior to the date
of termination, ‘The LPA shall be liable only for the costs, fecs and expenses for demobilizaton and dose out
of contract, based on actual time and expenses incurred by CONSULTANT in the packaging and shipment of
all documents covered by this CONTRACT ro the LPA. In no event shall the LPA be liable for lost profits or
other consequental damages,

ARTICLY IV, TIME OF PEREORMANCE
TIME 1S OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT shall be prepared w
perform its responsibilies for providing SERVICES commencing on the date of execution of the
CONTRACT.

The CONSULTANT has submitted 2 proposed project schedule to the LPA which has been
incotporated herein as o part of “Faxhibit 2", which when appeoved by final execution of this CONTRACT shall
control the evaluation of the CONSULTANT's progress on this PROJECT. A copy of the progress schedule,
indicating the actuzl time expended on specific portions of this project, shall be submitted along with an
estimated percentage completed with cach monthly statement.

A Notice to Proceed shall be issued under authority from the LPA within 30 days after final execution
of this CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT may not begin work on any featuse of this PROJECT prior 1o
receiving a Notice to Procead from the LPA.

ARTICLE V, RELATIONSHIP OF THI PARTIES

The reladonship of the CONSULTANT to the LPA is that of an independent contractor, and said
CONSULTANT, in accordance with its status as an independent contractor, covenants and agrees that it wall
conduct itself consistent with such status, that it will neither hold itsclf our as, nor claim 1w be, an officer or
employee of the LPA by reason hereof. The CONSULTANT  will not by reason hercof, make any claim,
demand or application or for any right or privilgze applicable to an officer or employee of the LPA, mcluding
bt not limited to workess' compensation coverage, unemployment insurance benefits; social secunity coverge,
retirement membership or credir, or any form of tx wadibolding whatsoever,

All notices, commusnicatons, and correspoadence between the LPA and the CONSULTANT shall be
directed to the key personnel and agents designated in this contrace.

Gl
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ARTICLE VI, COMPENSATION, BILLING & AUDIT
AC R

Costand Fees
The CONSULTANT shall be paid on the basis set fosth in "Lixhibet 3" ro this CONTRACT. Usnder
no circumstances shall the LPA be liable for any amounes, including any costs, which exceed the maximum
dollar amount of compensation that is specified in and set forth in “Exhibar 3",

B.M

The CONSULTANT may submit monthly billing to the LPA, (A sampie of & preferred invoice is
attached as "Exhibit 4") Each billing shall include all time and allowsble expenses through the end of the
billing period. Direct expenses, as used herein, include the costs of tmvel, subsistence, shipping charges, long
distance telephone calls and printing if it is not company accounting poliey o include these costs in overhead
rates. The LPA retains the right w verify time and expense records by aud:it of any or all CONSULTANTs
time and accounting records at any time dusing the life of the CONTRACT and up to theee years thereafter,

If SERVICES are rendered within a given State fiscal year, an invoice requesting payment from the
CONSULTANT shall be presented to the LPA within 60 days of the end of the State fiscal year, Should the
CONSULTANT fail to present the invoice within the allotted time, legislative approval may be
requited before payment can be rendered,

The CONSULTANT further agrees that FHWA or any other Pederal Agency may audit the same
records at any tme during the life of the CONTRACT and up to three years thereafter, should the funding
souree for all or any part of the CONTRACT be furds of the United States of Amenca.

C. Record Retenton

The CONSULTANT shali mammin all time and expense records incurred on the PROJECT and
used in support of its proposal and shall make such materizl available at all reasonable times during the peniod
of the CONTRACT and for three years from the date of final payment under this CONTRACT for
tnspection by the LPA, 2nd copies theseof shall be furnished upon request, at the IPA's expense. The
CONSULTANT agrees that the provisions of this Aracle shall be inchaded in any CONTRACT it may make
with any subcontructors, assignees or transferecs,

D. Reminage

The LPA shall retain the final 25% of the CONSULTANTs Fixed Fec until the final payment
request has been received and an audit of the total PROJECT cost to date has been completed by the LPA or its
designee,

ARTICLE VIL FINAL PAYMENT

The CONSULTANT shall cleady indicate on its last Inveice for the CONTRACT that the Tnvoice 1s
“FINAL®, The LPA will coafirm that the CONTRACT is ready to be cosed and the “FINAL” Invoice may
be paid. All “FINAL” invoices shall pay any retainage withheld on the CONTRACT. However, under no
arcumsmnces will the ol amount paid exceed the maximum not o exceed amouat estblished for the
CONTRACT, The CONSULTANT agrees that acceptance of the final payment shall be in full and final
settlement of all claims arising against the LPA for work done, documents furnished, cost incurred, or otherwise
arising out of this CONTRACT and shall retease the LPA from any and all further claims of whatever natwre,
whether known or unknown, for and on account of sad CONTRACT, including payment for any and all work
done, and labot and material furnished in connection with the same.  Etrars and/or omissions discovered
subsoquent to the acceptance by the LPA of the final conuact documents shall be corrected by the
CONSULTANT wathout addisonal compensatior. The CONSULTANT shall submit their “FINAL” invoice
no later than 45 days following tesmination of the CONTRACT.

47
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ARTICLE VIIL REVIEW OF WORK
Authotized representatives of the LPA nay at all reasomble times review and inspect the SERVICES
under this CONTRACT and any addenda oe amendments thereto. Authorized represontatives of the FHWA
may also review and inspect the SERVICES under this CONTRACT should funds of the United States of
America be in any way udlized in payment for said SERVICES, Such inspection shall not make the United
States of America a party to this CONTRACT, not will FHWA interfere with the rights of either party
hercunder,

All repors, drawings, studies and maps. prepared by and for the CONSULTANT, shall be made
available to authorized representatives of the LPA for inspection and review at all reasonable times in the
General Offices of the IPA. Authorized representatives of the FHWA may also review and inspeet said
veparts, drawings, studies and maps prepased under the CONTRACT should funds of the United States of
America be in any way udlized in payment for the same.  Acceptance by the 1PA shall not relieve the
CONSULTANT of its professional obligntion to correct, at its expense, any of its breaches, errors and/or
omissions, in the final version of the work.

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for performance of and compliance with all terms of this
CONTRACT, inchuding the Seope of Work and other exhibits, and including any technical specifications and
special requitements of the LPA, and shall be responsible for erors and/or omissions, including those s to
conduct and care, format and coateat, for all aspects of the CONTRACT, and including, professional quality
and technical accuracy of all designs, dmwings, specifieations, and other services fumished by the
CONSULTANT.

Failure to comply with any terms of this CONTRACT shall be corrected by the CONSULTANT
without additonal compensauon.

If any breach of CONTRACT, i discovered by LPA personncl after final acceprance of the work by
the LPA, then the CONSULTANT shall, without additional compensadon, cure any deficiency or breach
including crrors and/or omissions in designs, plans, drawings, specifications, or other services.

In the event that the project schedule requires that a breach of this CONTRACT be corrected by
someone other than the CONSULTANT then the acrual costs incutred by the LPA for such comrections shall
be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT, The LPA shall gve the CONSULTANT an opportunity to
correce said breach unless (1) the LPA determines, in its sole disctegion, that the CONSULTANT cannot
cure the breach within the schedule established by the LPA, or (2) the LPA determines, in its sole discretion,
that the CONSULTANT cannot cure the breach to the sadsfaction of the LPA,

In the event that the CONSULTANT breaches this CONTRACT, and the breaches of the
CONSULTANT are discovered during the construction phase, then an accounting of all costs incurred by
the LPA resulting from such breach, including esrors and/or omussions, will be made and such amount will
be recovered from the CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE IX. RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CLAIMS AND LIABILITY

The CONSULTANT shail indemnify, defend and hold harmless the LPA and all its officers, agents
and employess from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any negligent act, actions,
negleet or omission by the CONSULTANT, its agents, employees, or subconteactors during the performance of
this CONTRACT, whether direct or indirect, and whether t any pesson o property for which LPA or said
pastics may be subject, except that neither the CONSULTANT nor any of his agents or subcontractors will be
Tisble under this provision for damages ansing out of the injuty or damage o persons or property salely cuwsed
ot resulting from the negligence of the LPA or any of its officess, agents or employees.
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The CONSULTANTS obligatons ender this Ardcle, including the obliganons o mdemnify,
defend, hold hamless, pay reasonable aomey fees or, at the LPA'S option, participate and associate with the
LPA in the defense and trial or arbitration of any damage chim, lien or suit and any related setfement
negotiations, shall be initiated by the LPA'S notice of chim for indemnification to the CONSULTANT.
Only an adjudication or judgment after the highest appeal is exbausted specifically finding the LPA endirely
responsible shall excuse performance of this pmvmon by the CONSULTANT. In such case, the LPA shall
pay all costs and fees related to this oblipation and its enforcement. Should there be a finding of dual or
multiple Bability, costs and fees shall be appertioned accordingly.

In conjunction herewith, the LPA agrees 1 notfy CONSULTANT in writing as soon as practicable
afier receipt or notice of any claim involving CONSULTANT. These indemnities shall not be limived by reason
of the listing of any insurance covenygre below.

ARTICLE X. INSURANCE
Prior to beginning the work, the CONSULTANT shall obtain and furnish certificates to the LPA for
the following minimum umounss of insurance:

A Workers' Compensation Insutance in acenrdance with the kaws of the State of Mississippt.

B, Public Liakility Insurance in an amount not less than ane million dollass 31,000,000.00) on account of
any one oceutrence.

C. Propenty Damage Insurance in an amount nat less than five hundred thousand dollars $500,000.00)
from damages on account of any one oceurrence, with an aggregate limit of not less than one million
dollars (31,000,000,00),

D. Valuable Documenss Insurance, whether as a part of the property damage inswrance referenced above
or 35 scpamte insurance, in an amount suffickent to cover all costs associated with sepaiting, festoring or
replacing any documents kept or created by Consultant as a part of the Services, in the event of casualty
w, or Joss or theft of such documents,

L. Ertuzs and Omissions Insurance, in an amount not less than one million dollags §1.000,000.009 per
inadent; one million dollars F1,000,000.00) agpregate.

F. Comprehensive Automobile Linbility Insurnge, with a ecombined single limit for bodily injury and
propesty damage of not less than one million doflars (§1,000,000.00) per incident with respect to
CONSULTANTs {owned, hired or non-owned) vehicles, assigned to or used in the performance of
services.

The LPA shall be listed as a certificate holder of insurance on any of the insutance requited under
this CONTRACT,

In the event thae the CONSULTANT serins any subcontractor or other personnel to perform
SERVICES or carry out any activitics under or incident to work on any peoject or phase of this CONTRACT,
CONSULTANT  agrees to obuin from said subcontractor or other persanael, cenificates of insurance
demnnstrating that said subconteactor or other personnel has sufficient coverage, or o include sid
subcontmacenr o other pessonnel within CONSULTANT'S coverage for the duration of said PROJECT or
phase for which said subcontracror or other personnel is emplayed.

The Insurance coverage recited above shall be maintained in full force and effect by CONSULTANT
dusing the life of this CONTRACT. Should CONSULTANT cease to carry the ermors and omissions covenge
listed sbove for any reasor, it shall obtain "mil" coverage at the same limics for a persod of not less than three (3)
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years subsoquent o policy termination or contruct tesmination, whichever is Jonger. Should CONSULTANT
change insurance carriers for errors and for coverage, it shall obtiain a “retroactive coverage"” endorsement
from its new insurnce carier.

Insurance carmiers must be properly licensed and for must hold a Cerificate of Authotity from the
Mississippt Department of Insurance.

A cenificate of insurance aceeptable to the LPA shall be issucd to the LPA by the CONSULTANT
priot 1o the execution of this CONTRACT by the CONSULTANT and thereafter on an annual basis for the
duration of this CONTRACT as evidence that policics providing the required coverage, condidons and limits
are in full force and cffect. Such certificate shall identify this CONTRACT and contain provisions that
coverage afforded under the policies will not be cancelled, terminated, or matesially altesed uatil at lease thirry
(303 days pror written notice has been given to the LPA,

The CONSULTANT will fumish certified copics, upon request, of any o all of the palicies and/or
endorsements 1 the LPA prior to the executon of this CONTRACT and theseafter on an annual bagis for
the duration of this CONTRACT,

The CONSULTANT shall provade the LPA any and all documentation necessary to peove
compliance with the insurance requirements of this CONTRACT as such documentation is requested, from
time to time, by the LPAL

1f the CONSULTANT fails to procure ar maintain required insurance, the LPA may immediately
elect to terminate this CONTRACT or, at its discretion, procuse of renew such msurance and pay any and all
premiums in conneetion therewith, and all monies so paid by the LPA shall be repaid by the CONSULTANT
1o the LPA upon demand, or the LPA may offsee the cost of the premiums agamst any monies duc to the
CONSULTANT from the LPA,

AP, L A AIIN ENT FI 3R

The CONSULTANT shall comply with the relevant requirements of all foderal, stace or local laws, ‘The
CONSULTANT wartants that it has not employed or remined any company or person, other than a bona fide
employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, 5o saliar or secure this CONTRACT, and that it has not
paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a boma fide employee working solely for the
CONSULTANT, any fee commission, percensage, brokerge fee, gifts or any other coasiderabon contingent
upon or resulting from the swand or making of the CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT warrants that it shall
not coatribute any money, gift or gratuity of any kind, either direetdy or indirectly to any employee of the LPA,
vt o any employee of the Mississippi Department of Transporanon. Ior breach or violation of this wasranty,
the LPA shall have the right to terminate this CONTRACT without habslisy, and the CONSULTANT shal
forfeit any sums due hereonder at the fime of such breach and may be bamed from performing any tuture
services for the LLPA or partdcipating in any future contracts with the LPA.

The CONSULTANT shall not employ any person or persons in the employ of the LPA for any work
required by the terms of this CONTRACT, without the written permission of the LPA, except as may otherwise
be provided for hesein,

ARTICLES XIIL MODIFICATION
1f, prior to the sansfictory completion of the SERVICES under this CONTRACT, the LPA matesially
altess the scope, chamacter, complexity or dutation of the SERVICES from these required under this
CONTRACT, a supplemental agreement may be executed between the parties. Also, 2 supplemental agreement
may be executed between the pasties in the event that both parties agree the CONSULTANT' compensaton
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should be increased due to an wnanteipated ncrease in the nature, scope or amonnt of work accessary (o
propedy provide the SERVICES required on any particular phase or project begun bereunder,

Oral agreements or canversations with the LPA, any individual membet of the LPA, officer, agent, or
employee of the Mississippi Deparment of Transportation, cther before or after execunon of this
CONTRACT, <hall not affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained i this CONTRACT. All
modifications to this CONTRACT, amendments ar addenda thereto must be submitted in writing and signed
by the partes thereto before any work 3s commenced,

The CONSULTANT may not begin work on any modifications, amendments, or addenda prior o
receving a Notice o Proceed.

Minor changes in the proposal which do not involve changes in the contract maximum nor to exceed
atnount, extensions of time or changes in the goals and objectives of the CONTRACT may be made by writtes
sotification of such change by cither the LPA or the CONSULTANT 1o the other party, and shall become
cffective upon wiitten scceptance thereof (e, letter agreament).

ARTICLE XIV. SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER

It is understond by the parties to this CONTRACT that the work of the CONSULTANT is considesed
persanal by the LPA, ‘The CONSULTANT shall not assign, sublet or teansfer any or all of its interest in this
CONTRACT without prior written approval of the LPA,  Usnder no arcumsmnces will CONSULTANT be
allowed to sublet mare than 60% of the work required under this contract, It is clearly understond and agreed
that specific projects oe phases of the work may be sublet in their entrety provided that CONSULTANT
pesforms at fease 40% of the ovenll contract with its own forces. Consent by the LPA 1o any subcontract shall
not relieve CONSULTANT from any of its obligabons hereunder, and CONSULTANT is required to mainuain
final management responsbility with segard to any such subcontract.

The IPA reserves the right to review all subcontrace documents prepared in connection with this
CONTRACT, and the CONSULTANT agrees that it shall submit to the LPA any proposed subcontract
document together with subcontractor cost estimates for review and written concurrence of the LPA in advance
of their execution,

The CONSULTANT shall make prompt payment 1o all subconsultants no later than 15 days from
teceipt of each payment the LPA makes to the CONSULTANT. Tach month, the CONSULTANT shall
submit OCR-484-C found on MDOT’s website to the LPA along with the Invoice. This form cermifies
payments 1o all Subconsultants and shows all firms even if the CONSULTANT has paid no monies to the
fiom during that estimate period (negative report),

The CONSULTANT aggecs that all reports, computer information and access, drawings, smdies, notes,
maps and other data, prepared by and for them under the terms of this CONTRACT shall be delivered o,
becume and remain in the property of the LPA wpon ercation and shall be delivered to the TPA upon
termination or completion of work, or upoen request of the LPA regardless of any chaim or dispute between the
parties. All such data shall be delivered withan thisty (30) days of receipt of a written request by the LPA.

The CONSULTANT and the LPA intend and agree that this CONTRACT to be a contract for
services and each parey considers the products and results of the services w be sendered by the
CONSULTANT hereunder, including any and all material produced and/or delivered under this
CONTRACT {the “Woek™), to be a “work made for hire” under LS. copyright and all applicable laws, The
CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that the LPA owns all righe, ttle, and interest in and to the Work
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sncluding, without limitaton, the copynght therem and all rrademark, patent, and all intedlecoal property
nghts thereto,

If for any reason the Wotk would not be considered 5 work made for hite under applicable law, or in
the event this CONTRACT is derermined to be other than a contract or agreement for a work made for hire,
the CONSULTANT does heseby ransfer and assign to the LPA, and its successors and assigns, the entire
tight, title, and interest in and to any Work prepared hereunder including, withour limitation, the following:
the copyright and all tademark, patent, and all intellectual property rights in the Work and any registgons
and copyright, and/or all other intellectual property, apphications relating thereto and any renewals and
extensions thereof, zll works based upon, detived from, or incorporating the Work; all income, rovaltics,
damages, claims, and paymenes now or hereafter due or papable with sespecr therero; all cauvses of action,
cither in law or in equity, for past, present, or future infringement based on the copyrights and/or all othes
intcllectual property; all nghts, including all rights to claim priosity, coresponding o the foregoing i the
Unired States and 1ts wrmitorial possessions and in all foreign countries.  The CONSULTANT agrees to
execute all papess and perform such ather proper acts ag the LPA may deem necessary to seeure for the LPA
ar its designee the fights heran assigned.

The LPA may, without any notice or obligation of further compensation to the CONSULTANT,
publish, re-publish, anthologize, wse, disseminate, license, or sell the Work in any format or medium now
known or hereafter invented or devised. The LPA'S rghts shall include, without limitation, the rights o
publish, re-publish, or license a third party 1o publish, re-publish, or sell the Work in print, on the World
Wide Web, or in any other electronic or digital format or damabasc now known or hereafter invented or
devised, as a separate salated work or as part of 2 compilation or ather collective wortk, including a work
different in form from the first publication, and to include or license a third pasty o include the Work in an
clectronic or digital database or any other medium or format now known or hereafter invented or devised.

The CONSULTANT shall obrain any and all right, tide, and interest to all input and/or marcrial
from any third party subconsultant, or any other pasty, who may provide such input and/or material to any
portion of the Work so that said right, title, and interest, and all such interest In and 10 the Waork including,
without limitation, the copyright theretn and all trademark, patenc, and all intellecrual property rights dhereeo,
shall belong o the LPA,

Tor any intelloctual property nights currently owned by third partics or by the CONSULTANT and
not subject to the terms of this CONTRACT, the CONSULTANT agrees that it will obtain ot grant voyalty-
free, nonexclusive, irrevocable license(s) for or to the LPA at no cost to the LPA o use all copynghted or
copynightable work(s) and all other intellectual property which is incorporated in the material fumished under
this CONTRACT. Further, the CONSULTANT warranes and represents to the LPA that it has obtained or
granted any and all such licensing prior to presentation of any Work to the LPA under this CONTRACT.
This obligation of the CONSULTANT does not apply to a situation involving « third pary who enters a
license agreement directly with the LPA,

The CONSULTANT warrans and represents that it has not previously licensed the Work in whole
or in part to any third party and that use of the Work in whole or in part will not viokate any rights of any
kind or nature whatsoever of any third party. The CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify und hold harmless
the LPA, its successors, assigns and assigmecs, and its respecnve officers, directors, agents and employees,
from and against any and all claims, damages, liabilives, costs and expenses {including reasonable attomeys”
fees), anising out of or in any way connccted with any breach of any representation or warsanty made by
CONSULTANT herein.

ARTICLE XVI, PUBLICATION AND PUBLICITY
The CONSULTANT agrees thac it shall not for any reason whatsoever communicate to any third
pasty, with the exception of the MDOT and the FHWA, in any manner whatsoever concerning any of its
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CONTRACT work producy, its conducr uader the CONTRACT, the results or data gathered or processed
under this CONTRACT, which inciudes, but is not limited to, reports, computer informaton and access,
drawings, studies, notes, maps and other data prepared by and for the CONSULTANT under the terms of
this CONTRACT, without prior written appeaval from the LPA, unless such release or disclosure is required
by judicial proceeding. The CONSULTANT ngrees ¢hat it shall immediacely sefer any third pasty who
requests such information to the LPA and shall also report 1o the LPA any such third party inquiry, with the
exception of the MDOT and/or the FHWA, This Article shall not apply to information in whatever form
that comes into the public domain, nor shall it restrict the CONSULTANT from giving notices required by
law or complying with an owder @ provide information or data when such order is isswed by a court,
adminiserative agency or other authority with proper jusisdiction, or if it 3s reasonably necessary for the
CONSULTANT 1o defend iself from any suit or daim,

IT1S FURTHER AGREED, that all approved releases of informasion, findings, and recommiendations
shall include a disclaimer pravision and that all published reports shall include that disclaimer on the cover and
title page in the following form:

“Ths apininns, findings, and owcstans it Hiis publication are those of the wnthor(s) anid wof necessaely thce of
thy Laxal Paliic Agensy, Missicapgi Departoent of Trangartation, Misdssippi Trangparsation Camission,
thv State of Misgesippe, or the Federa! Highway Adwinistration.

ARTICLE XVIL CONTRACT DISPUTES

This CONTRACT shall be deemed to have been exeouted in insert County name here County,
Mississippi, and all questions including, but not limired to, questions of interpretaton, construction and
performance shall be govemed by the laws of the State of Mississippi, excluding its conflicts of laws provisions,
and any litgation with respeet to this CONTRACT shall be brought in a cout of competent jurisdiction tn
insert County name here, State of Mississippi. The CONSULTANT expressly agrees that under no
circumstances shall the LPA be obligated to or responsible for payment of 40 atomey’s fee for the cost of
legal action to or on behalf of the CONSULTANT,

ARTICLE XVII, COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW
A. The undersgned certify that o the best of thar knowledge and belief, the foregoing 15 in
compliance with all applicable laws.

B, The CONSULTANT shall observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local
laws, rules and regulations, policies and procedures, ondinances, and orders and decrees of
bodies or tribunals of the United States of Ameren or any agency thesenf, the Staw of
Mississippi of any agency thereof, and any local governments or political subdivisions, that
ate in cffect at the time of the exccution of this CONTRACT or that may later become
effective.

4 The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee nor shall any paryy be
subject to discnmination in the performance of this CONTRACT because of race, creed,
color, sex, national ongin, age or disability.

D, IT 1S FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AGREED that the CONSULTANT shall comply and
shall require its subconteactors to comply with the regulations for COMPLIANCE WITH
TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, a5 amended, and all other applicable
fedenl regulations as stated in "Exhibit 5" which is incorporated hescin by reference.

E, It is agreed that the CONSULTANT will comply with the provisions set forth in Department
of Tunsportaton, 49 CIR, Section 18, Et Seq, regarding Uniform Administrative
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Reguirements for Grants and  Cooperauve agreements. in s administration of - this
CONTRACT or any subcontmet resulting hetefronm,

£, The CONSULTANT agrees that it will abide by the provisions of 49 CFR Secton 26
regarding disadvantaged business entesprises and indude the cemificaion made in "Exbibit 5"
to this CONTRACT in any and all subcontracts which may resalt from this CONTRACTS.

G, The CONSULTANT shail comply and shall require its subconsultants w comply with Code
of Federal Regulations CFR 23 Pant 634 - Worker Visibiliry — as stated in “Exhibic 57,

H. IMMIGRANT STATUS CERTIFICATION, The CONSULTANT sepresents that it is in
compliance with the Immigration Reform and Conerol Act of 1986 {Public Law 99-603), as
amended, in refation 1o all employees performing work in the State of Mississippi and does
not knowingly cmploy persons 1n violation of the United States immigragon Jaws.  The
CONSULTANT further represents that it 1s registered and participating in the Department
of Homeland Secunty’s E-Venfy™ employment cligibility venification progeam, or successor
thereto, and will mainin records of comphiance with the Mississippi  Employment
Protection Act including, but not lmited to, requring compliance certfication from all
subconractors and vendors who will parteipate in the performance of this Agreement and
maineining  such cerifications for nspection i requested. The CONSULTANT
acknowledges that violation may result in the following: (3} cancellanon of any public
contract and ineligbility for any public contract for up to three (3) years, or (b) the loss of
any license, permit, certificaion or other documens granted by an agency, department or
governmental entity for the right to do business in Mississippi for up to one (1) year, or (c)
both, The CONSULTANT also acknowledges [rability for any additional costs incurred by
the LPA duc to such contrace cancellaion or loss of license or permit.  The
CONSULTANT is required to provide the cerufication on Exhibit 9 in this CONTRACT to
the LPA verifying that the CONSULTANT and subconsulaant(s) arc repistered and
participating in E-Verify paor to execurion of this CONTRACT

L The covenants herein shall, except a5 otherwise provided, acerue o the benefit of and be
binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties heseto.

Failure of ecither party hereto to insist upon strict compliance with any of the wrms, covenants, and
conditions hereof shall not be deemed 2 waiver or relingquishment of any similas right or power hercunder at any
subscquent time, or of any other provision heteof, nor shall it be construed 1o be @ modification of the tetms of
this CONTRACT,

ARTICLE XX. SEVERABILITY
1f any terms or provisions of this CONTRACT arc profubited by the laws of the Sate of Mississippi o
deelared invalid or void by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this CONTRACT shall not be
affocted thereby and cach term and provision of this CONTRACT shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent pesmiteed by law.

ARTICLE XXI._ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This CONTRACT constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect o the subject mateer
contained herein and supersedes and replaces any and all prios acgetations, understandings, and agreements,
written or oml, between the parties relating thereto.
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ARTICLE XXIL CONFLICT OF INTEREST
The CONSULTANT covenants that no public or private interests exist and none shall be acquired
direetly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the CONSULTANTS
CONTRACT. The CONSULTANT further covenants that no employee of the CONSULTANT or of any
subconsulant(s), regardless of his/her position, is to personally benefit dircetly or indircedy from the
performance of the SERVICES or from any knowledige obtained duning the CONSULTANT'S executon of
this CONTRACT.

ARTICLE XXIIL AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of the LPA to proceed under this
CONTRACT is conditioned upoa the availability of funds, the appropnation of funds by the Mississippi
Jegislatare, and the receipt of state and/or federal funds, 1F, at any time, the funds anticipared for the
fudfillment of this CONTRACT arce not forthcoming orare insufficient, cther through the failuse of the federl
povernment w provide funds or of the State of Mississppt to approprate funds or the discontinuance or
material alteration of the program under which funds were provided, or if funds are not otherwise available to
the LPA for the pesformance of this CONTRACT, the LPA shall have the right, upon written notice to the
CONSULTANT, to immediately terminate or stop work oa this CONTRACT without damage, penalty, cost,
or expense to the LPA of any kind whatsoever, The effective dace of terminaton shall be as specified in the
notice of trmination,

ARTICLE XXIV, STOP WORK ORDER

A Order to Stop Work. The LPA may, by written order to the CONSULTANT at any time, and
without notice tw any sutety, reguire the CONSULTANT 1o swp all or any part of the work called
for by this CONTRACT. This order shall be for a specified period not exceeding twenty-four (24)
months after the order is debvered w the CONSULTANT unless the partics agree to any further
period,  Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop work order issued pursuant to this
clause. Upon receipt of such an vrdes, the CONSULTANT shall forthwith comply with its teems
and take all steps o minimize the occurrence of costs allocable to the wotk covered by the order
during the period of work stoppage,  Before the stop work order expires, or within any farther
period to which the partics shall have agreed, the LPA shall cither:

(1) cancel the stop work order; or
{2) terminate the work covered by such order accarding to and as provided in Arnde 11T of this
CONTRACT,

Priov to the LPA'S taking official action to stop work under this CONTRACT, the Executve
Director of MDOT and/or the LPA may notify the CONSULTANT, in writing, of the MDOT or
the L.PA’s intentions to ask the LPA or CONSULTANT to stop work under this CONTRACT.
Upon notice from the Execotive Director of MDOT or the LPA, the CONSULTANT shall suspend
all activities under this CONTRACT, pending final action by the LPA,

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order, 1f a stop work order issved under this clause 1s canceled
at any time duting the period specified in the order, or if the pesiod of the order or any extension
theseof expires, the CONSULTANT shall have the right w resume work. 1 the LPA decdes thar it
is justified, an appropriate adjustment may be made in the delivery schedule. 1f the stop work order
results in an mcrease in the time required for og in the CONSULTANT'S cost propesly allocable to
the performance of any part of this CONTRACT and the CONSULTANT asserts a clam for such
an adjustment within 30 days after the end of the peried of work stoppage, an equitable adjustment
in this CONTRACT may be made by written modificaton of this CONTRACT as provided by the
terms of this CONTRACT.

"
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Termination of Stopped Work. If a stop work order 15 nor canceled and the work covered by such
order is terminated, the CONSULTANT may be pasd for services rendered prior to the Termination,
In addition o payment for services rendered prior to the date of termunaton, the LPA shall be lable
only for the costs, fees, and expenses for demobilization and close out of this CONTRACT, based
on actual time and expenses meurred by the CONSULTANT in the packagng and shipment of all
documents covered by this CONTRACT o the LPA. In no event shall the LPA be lable for lost
profits or other consequentinl damages,
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ARTICLE XXV. KEY PERSONNEL & DESIGNATED AGENTS
CONSULTANT agrees that Key Personned wdentfied as assigned to this PROJECT shall not be
changed or reassgned without prior approval of the LPA or, if proe approval is impossible, and then notice to
the LPA and subscquent review by the LPA which may approve or disapprove the acnon. For purposes of
Implementing this section and all other sections of this CONTRACT with regard to notice, the Following
individuals are herewith designated as agents for the respective parties undess otherwise identified in the addoxd

hereto:

LPA:

For Contractual Matters: For Technical Matters:
Ed Pinero, Jr., Ph.D., Mayor Eric Mortds, Public Works Director
Mayor, Caty of Preayunc Public Works Director, Gty of Picayune
203 Goodyear Boulevard 203 Goodyear Boulevard
Picayune, MS 39466 Picayune, MS 39466
6017989770 H#1-798-9770
6017980564 601-T98-0564
pisstaffasseelbollsonth et emonis@picayune. maus
CONSULTANT:

For Contractual Matters: For Technical Matters:
Brooks Wallace, P.E. Vermon Moore, P E.
Dungan Engincering, P.A. Dungan Engincering, P.A.
925 Goodyear Bhvd 925 Goodyear Blvd
Picayune, MS 39466 Picayune, MS 39466
601-799-1057 6017991037
601-799-0450 GO1-799-0480
brooks@dungancmg.cum vemnon(@dunpneng.com
Licensure Number Licensure Number

from the Mississippi from the Mississippi

Board of Licensure Board of Licensure

for Professional

Engincers/Aschitects and Sutvevoss:

for Professional
Engincers/ Archirect’s and Surveyors:

PE. # 17659 PLEH 19048

Surveyor #___ NA Surveyor ##_NA______
Or Or

Architect's#____ NA___ Architeet’s # __NA__

el
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ARTICLE XXVI. AUTHORIZATION
Both parties bereto represent that they have authority o enter inm this € INTRACT and that the
individuals executing this CONTRACT are authonzed m exccuee it and bind thar respective partics and
certificd copies of the applicable LPA Ovder and the Resolution of the Corporte Boazd of Directors of the
CONSULTANT are attached hereto as “Exhibit 1" and incorporated herein by reference and made a part
heteof as if fully copied hercin in words and fygures,

WITNESS this my signature in excoution hereof, this the _ day of 20,

CITY OF PICAYUNE

Ed Pinero, Jr., Ph.D, .M.-x.). '&I

WITNESS this my ssprature in execution bereof, this the day of L2

DUNGAN ENGINEERING, P.A.

BY:

Brooks \"s"zll:urr.—l’.li

ATTEST

Exhibits attached bereto and incorporated by refesence into this contract include those identified on
the attached page entitled “List of Exhibits".

jo&

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

APPROVE REQUEST TO TRANSFER ONE SEIZURE VEHICLE TO THE CRIMINAL
INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION




REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2016

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to transfer one seizure vehicle (2002 Chevrolet CTA,White) to the Criminal
Investigative Division for use as needed.

CITY OF PICAYUNIC

POLICE DEPARTMENT
AUTHORIZATION TO SURPLUS

COMPLETE IN DUPLICATE

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (SERIAL #): 1GNECI3Z02R330420

DESCRIPTION: 2002 CHEVROLET CTA , WHITE

RESPONSIBLE PARTY: PICAYUNE POLICE DEPARTMENT

CURRENT LOCATION OF PROPERTY. SEIZURE YARD PICAYUNE POLICE DEPARTMENT

LOCATION AFTER SURPLUS AUTHORIZATION: PICAYUNE POLICE DEPARTMENT

RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY:
DISCARD, JUNK
SELL AS SCRAP
SELL AS USABLE EQUIPMENT OR PARTS
TRADE - IN ON PURCHASE OF NEW EQUIPMENT

REASON FOR SURPLUS OF PROPERTY: TRANSFER THE VEHICLE TO BE USED AS A
NEEDED UNIT AT CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION.

REQUEST:
IX] APPROV ﬁﬁ ?APPROVED
/// )
Az. pYan
SIGﬂATURE OF AU ( aouuw(oen ome'osf Zéf,’ugsr
ROVED [l pisaPPROVED

X app
S~ / 2

S (;MTURE T DEPA ENT CHIEF DATE OF REQUEST

IF TRANSFERRED TO YTHER CITY DEPARTMENT, ENTER DATE TRANSFERRED B

RECEIVED BY DEPARTMENT:

SIGNATURE OF DEPARTMENT SUPERVISOR

[B/PROVED [] pisAPPROVED
/ ’f'/, y, 210~/

SIGNATURE OF CITY MANAGER DATE OF SIGNATURE
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The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

AUTHORIZE SUPLUS OF SEIZURE VEHICLE BACK TO CAR TITLE LOANS
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Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Stevens to authorize surplus of seizure vehicle back to Car Title Loans.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO TABLE DISCUSSION OF NEED FOR AN ORDINANCE TO APPOINT
BOARD MEMBERS

Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member
Bumpers to table discussion of need for an Ordinance to appoint board members to the
second meeting in March.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None
The motion was declared carried.

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Motion was made by Council Member Valente, seconded by Council Member
Gouguet to adjourn.

The following roll call was made:

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Valente, Bumpers, Stevens
Breland and Gouguet

VOTING NAY: None
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None
ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING: None

The motion was declared carried.
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Ed Pinero, Mayor

ATTEST:

Amber Hinton, City Clerk



